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Corporate Information
NAEH
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

The Group has recorded a slight loss of approximately HK$2.3
million for the year ended 30 June 2013 as compared to a
loss of approximately HK$44.9 million for the corresponding
period ended 30 June 2012. The reduction in loss was mainly
due to an increase in the fair values of certain investment
properties for the year ended 30 June 2013, as compared to a
net decrease in fair values in the investment properties for the
corresponding period ended 30 June 2012.

As stated in our interim report 2013 delivered to shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) on 21 February 2013
(the “Interim Report 2013"), the Company commenced legal
proceeding in the High Court of the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI High Court”) in December 2012 and filed (i) a claim
against Interlsle Holdings Limited (“Interlsle”) and relevant
parties for the transfer of over 30% interest in Quorum Island
(BVI) Limited (“Quorum™) to Applied Enterprises Limited
("Applied Enterprises”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Transfer Claim”) and (ii) a claim against
Quorum for the non-payment of the promissory note in the
principal amount of US$22 million (approximately HK$171.6
million) (the “Non-Payment Claim”). In response, Interlsle
filed its application for stay of the Transfer Claim and sought
an order for the Transfer Claim to be dealt with by way of
arbitration proceedings. However, the BVI High Court granted
the application for stay in favour of Interlsle and ordered that
the parties should commence arbitration to determine the
substantive outcome of the Transfer Claim. Following the
decision of the BVI High Court, the Company has been further
granted the leave to appeal against the decision by the BVI
High Court, and the hearing date is expected to take place in
the first quarter of 2014. The management of the Company
maintains its view that it has a strong position in respect of the
Transfer Claim and the Non-Payment Claim. The Company will
keep Shareholders updated on any significant progress of the
proceedings.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

In June 2012, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, &
SRR CRIDBERLDR (“&#%") entered into a
binding purchase and sale agreement for the disposal (the
“Disposal”) of an investment property located at Part of Level
1 & whole floor of Level 2, No. 42 Zhan Qian Road, Zi Pian B
Qu, Guangdong Province, the PRC (the “Property”) (having
a net book value of HK$8.4 million as at 30 June 2011) at a
consideration of RMB16.5 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$20.2 million) excluding land premium and taxes. Due to
the failure to agree the additional amount of tax payable as
a result of the calculation based on the value of the Property
at RMB22,000 per square meter (i.e. such that the total value
of the Property assessed by the PRC tax bureau amounted
to RMB24.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$30.3
million)), the purchaser filed an application to the court for
an order that the Disposal be completed and the payment of
additional tax to be payable by ZHt% . In response, ZE#Z has
filed a counter claim against the purchaser for non-payment
of the additional tax or in the alternate, the unconditional
cancellation of the transaction. The Company will keep
Shareholders updated on any significant progress of the
proceedings. However, the Company has made provision for
the tax payable on the completion of the Disposal.

BUSINESS PLAN

The Group has its resort projects, one in the BVI and one in
Panama, which are expected to provide a satisfactory return
to the Company. The main investment properties held by the
Group in Hong Kong, Severn Villa, is expected to generate
rental income or, in the alternate, provide a good return to the
Group. The Company continues to look for any investment
opportunities which may provide a good return to the
Shareholders.

RESULTS

The Group’s consolidated loss for the year ended 30 June
2013 amounted to approximately HK$2.3 million as compared
with the loss of approximately HK$44.9 million for the
corresponding year ended 30 June 2012. Such narrowing of
the loss was mainly due to increase in the fair values of certain
investment properties for the year ended 30 June 2013 as
compared to a net decrease in fair values in the investment
properties for the corresponding period ended 30 June 2012.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As the end of the reporting period, the Group and the

Company had provided the following securities for the banking

facilities granted to a subsidiary of the Company:

(a)

pledge of investment properties of the Group with
a carrying amount of HK$231,000,000 (2072:
HK$230,000,000);

all monies earned by the above pledged investment
properties of the Group. During the year, there was
no rental income generated from these investment
properties (2012: HK$2,925,000);

property insurance on the pledged investment
properties executed by the Group in favour of the
bank. At the end of the reporting period, the property
insurance coverage amounted to HK$16,500,000
(2012: HK$15,840,000); and

unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee
given by the Company in respect of all amounts owing
by the subsidiary to the bank under the facility.

BUSINESS REVIEW

()

Resort and Property Development
BVI Project

As disclosed in our Interim Report 2013, the ownership
interest in Quorum held by Interlsle, our joint venture
partner in a project (the “BVI Project”) located at Beef
Island, Tortola, the British Virgin Island (the “BVI")
was to be reduced from 50% to less than 20% (the
“Dilution”) as originally contemplated under a joint
venture agreement (the “Agreement”) entered between
the Group and Interlsle to develop the BVI Project
in August 2006. After several rounds of negotiation
between Interlsle and the Company, the Company
has not yet been able to finalise details of the Dilution
with Interlsle and the position of both parties after the
Dilution. To protect the interest of Shareholders, the
Company commenced legal proceeding in the BVI High
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Court in December 2012 and filed (i) the Transfer Claim
against Interlsle and (i) the Non-Payment Claim against
Quorum. In response, Interlsle filed its application for
stay of the Transfer Claim and sought an order for the
Transfer Claim to be dealt with by way of arbitration
proceedings. The management of the Company
maintains its view that it has a strong position in respect
of the Transfer Claim and the Non-Payment Claim.
However, the BVI High Court granted the application
for stay in favour of Interlsle and ordered that the
parties should commence arbitration to determine the
substantive outcome of the Transfer Claim. Following
the decision of the BVI High Court, the Company has
been further granted the leave to appeal against the
decision by the BVI High Court, and the hearing date
is expected to take place in the first quarter of 2014.
The Company will keep Shareholders updated on any
significant progress of the proceedings. Upon the
completion of the Dilution, Quorum will become a
subsidiary of the Group.

The BVI Project comprises approximately 267 hectares
(approximately 660 acres or 28.75 million square
feet) of land and is envisioned to be a master-
planned resort community which will include: a five-
star luxury resort hotel with approximately 200 hotels
and condo-hotel units, destination spa, signature
restaurants and conference rooms; a first-class marina
with approximately 135 ships, including facilities for
15 mega-yachts over 80 feet; a golf course and up to
600 high-end residential units including townhomes,
beachfront residences, ocean-view villas, and secluded
mountain estate homes; as well a unique artisan and
retail village at Trellis Bay.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

(i)

(iii)

Panama Project

The Panama Project comprises two pieces of land:
(i) a piece of land of approximately 494 hectares
(approximately 1,223 acres or 53.27 million square
feet) named Playa Grande in Boca Chica, District of
San Lorenzo, Province of Chiriqui in Panama (the
“Panama Land”); and (i) a hot spring with a land size
of approximately 9 hectares (approximately 22.3 acres
or 0.97 million square feet) in the Borough of San
Felix, Province of Chiriqui in Panama (the “Hot Spring
Property”). The management of the Company has
worked with professionals and architects on the relevant
plans for the sub-lot region of the Panama Land for
submission to the relevant authorities of Panama.

The Panama Project plans to feature a luxury hotel,
a marina facility and a marina village, a 18-hole golf
course, a branded fractional ownership club, branded
ocean-view villas and branded residential lots. After
completion of the Panama Project, it is expected that
2,000 residential units in the various branded residential
lots will be offered for sale.

The Group will replicate the business model of the
BVI Project, and intends to partner with renowned
experts in the resort development industry to develop
the Panama Project subject to the prevailing economic
climate and conditions of the property market.
Alternatively, if a suitably attractive offer is made by
potential buyers, the Board may consider the disposal
of the Panama Land and/or the Hot Spring Property.

Property Investment and Holding

The Group's investment properties did not generate
rental income to the Group during the year ended 30
June 2013.

Investment Holding

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group
realised all remaining financial assets held by the Group
with a slight profit. The management continues to
seek investment opportunities which may result in a
satisfactory yield for the Group, however, the Company
currently has no investment plans on hand.

(i)

(iii)
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

OUTLOOK

Following the improvement of the economy of the United
States, the Company intends to commence the Group's
overseas resort development projects, subject to the conditions
of the property market in the relevant region. The management
expects that the Group’s investment properties in Hong Kong
and Panama and the developments in the BVI will bring in
satisfactory returns to the Group in the near future.

The Group continues to seek other appropriate investment
opportunities which may bring satisfactory return to the Group.

PORTAL OPERATION

The Group's website at http://www.applieddev.com serves as a
channel to facilitate the communication between the Company
and its Shareholders and includes updated corporate and
investor information.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

At the end of May 2013, the Company issued convertible
bonds of aggregate principal amount of HK$31,080,000 to
Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond ("Mr. Hung"”) (the Managing
Director and a substantial Shareholder). Details of the issue
are set out in the Company’s circular dated 6 May 2013.
It is intended that the net proceeds from the issue of the
convertible bonds will be applied as general working capital of
the Company.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group's total net asset value and
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$420.0 million
and approximately HK$143.7 million respectively, representing
a gearing ratio of approximately 34.2% as compared to
approximately 28.4% for the year ended 30 June 2012. As
at 30 June 2013, the Group’s current asset value and current
liabilities”, excluding bank borrowings over 1 year (based on
scheduled payment dates) and convertible bonds due within
12 months amounted to approximately HK$61.1 million and
approximately HK$30.0 million respectively, representing a
current ratio of 2.04 times. The majority of the Group’s assets
and liabilities were denominated in Hong Kong and US dollars,
and hence the exposure to foreign exchange risk is insignificant
to the Group.

# Mr. Hung has undertaken unconditionally to provide the
Company at any time at the request of the Company,
with an interest free loan.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE
FLUCTUATIONS

The Group does not engage in interest rate or foreign exchange
speculative activities. It is the Group’s policy to manage foreign
exchange risk through matching foreign exchange income
with expenses, and where exposure to foreign exchange is
anticipated, appropriate hedging instruments will be used.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30 June 2013, the Group employed a total of 10 (2072: 9)
full-time employees.

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the basis
of the performance of individual employees and are reviewed
annually. The Group also provides medical insurance coverage
and a provident fund scheme to its employees depending on
the location of such employees.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my heartfelt thanks to all of the staff and business
partners for their hard work and dedication.

By order of the Board
Hung Kai Mau, Marcus

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 September 2013
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREEEEAERRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond, aged 64, Managing
Director, holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical
Engineering from the University of Illinois and a Master in
Business Administration (“MBA") degree from the University
of Chicago, United States of America. Mr. Raymond Hung
founded the Group in April 1976, and he has been actively
involved in the Group’s development over the last 37 years.
Upon his appointment as an Executive Director, he will have
overall responsibility for the activities of the Company.

Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus, aged 31, Chairman, holds a
Bachelor's degree in Economics and a MBA degree both from
University of Chicago. He joined the Company in 2005. He
is principally responsible for the overall management and
business of the Group.

Ms. Ng Kit Ling, aged 48, Executive Director, is a Certified
Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and
she holds a Master Degree in Accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. She joined the Group in 2005 and
immediately prior to her appointment as Executive Director,
Ms. Ng was the Financial Controller and Company Secretary.
She has over 27 years of experience in finance and accounting
matters of companies listed in Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lun Tsan Kau, aged 59, Independent Non-executive
Director, holds a Master of Science degree in Electronics and
Computer Science from the University of California at Berkeley,
USA and a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1997. He
has over 34 years experience in investment, manufacturing,
banking and real estate development. He was previously
affiliated with several international banks, an electronics
manufacturing company, a US based investment holding
company and a HK public listed real estate development
company.

HITES

REAERE - 6458 EFHKE - BAFF
M ABRE 2 ERTIZBS T2 KX
B MERERKR s THERSR T B -
R—NERFEA - HEERIBASE I
RBE=TtFERG2EREEZZ
B’ REER/RATESFER  BHEEARR
NG S

HEEEE 31 TF - FHAEEZINE

REZEREBABETIRHERE T B RE

BELEMN - R _TTERFMALREE -
ZREREENEREE RER

BBt 485 WITESE BEGIE
G AME R RESFARGIEA
BREELBERATEETI AR ER
B FR_ZTRFMARKE RN
RERBTEZN AV BRERATWE -
REFABB - T EFUALZ EARMBE
BERaFt I EZ &R -

/

H- 1 > 4o

BAYFHTES

RBIREL 595 WUFNTEE - F6
EEMMNARRKARBEF R ERIA L 26N
ERARBIRHERBLEM - R~ NNt
FMAREE - WRIRE - BUEE - RITE
FEMEERFEFEB=-THFALZE
B WETBNERBRET  —REFH
ERF S —RKUEBEREM 2 REERAF]
R—REB LM ZEHERRAT -

Applied Development Holdings Limited EhZ%¥EBAR 2R Annual Report 2013 F4

1



12

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREEEEAERRE

Mr. Su Ru Jia, aged 63. Independent Non-executive Director,
holds a MBA degree from International East-West University
of America CEBIBIPREPE 5 KE2) and graduated from
Nanjing Senior Army Command College’ (B R #FEEE
2Pt ) and South China Normal University (ZERGATEIAER)
in 1983 and 1989 respectively. He has been appointed as a
Committee Member of The Communist Party of Committee
of Shenzhen$ (FFEYITEZE ), a Committee Member of
Political of Association Shenzhen Committees ({772 3IITH &
B&%%Z) and a Deputy Director of Main Branch of Economic
Technology Committee’ (& ERHEZ E € 1EBFEIE(T) since
2007, before that, he was appointed as a Deputy Chief of
Shenzhen Trade Development Council® (FIIIE 5% E BB
£ ) and a Secretary of The Communist Party of Committee of
Shenzhen Unit Work Committee$ (FF /&I &= 5T 8E7 T
fEZE®E30) in 1998 and 2001 respectively. He has worked
for the Community State of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") for over 44 years. During the course of working for the
military of PRC from the Deputy Squad Leader lastly promoted
to the Commander of the military, he achieved three Third-
class merit reward and was praised his excellent performance
over 20 times. He has an extensive and professional experience
in the economic and property development of PRC, especially
management and administration in the PRC State Committee.

Mr. Lo Yun Tai, aged 67, Independent Non-executive Director,
holds a B.Sc. degree in Mechanical Engineering from National
Taiwan University. He has over 43 years extensive experience
in corporate management and operation of his chain of
private companies of which he is the sole-proprietor. He is
also familiar with the business, operations and development
of the Company and its subsidiaries acquired during the time
when he was an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company from 1998 to 2009.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREEEEAERRE

Mr. Chan Ming Fai, Terence, aged 43, Independent Non-
executive Director, holds a MBA degree in E-Commerce from
University of Ballarat, Australia and a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree in Economics from Hong Kong Baptist
University. Mr. Chan is also a member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan has been
working as a financial consultant since 2008, before which
he was a director of Zap Financial Consultancy Ltd, providing
financial consulting or advisory service. He has over 20 years
of experience in financial consulting, corporate restructuring,
mergers and acquisitions, raising capital and financing,
strategic financial planning, especially assisting over 100
Chinese enterprises in the obtaining of leasing finance and
trade finance through banks in Hong Kong and China.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT & COMPANY
SECRETARY

Mr. Tang Sung Ki, aged 53, Assistant Accounting Manager
and Company Secretary. He is a fellow member of both
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom. He joined the Group as an assistant accounting
manager in November 2012. Before joining the Group,
Mr. Tang had worked as a company secretary of a listed
company for over 16 years. He also has over 21 years
experience in finance and accounting in companies listed in
Hong Kong.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRES

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have the
pleasure to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The Group is principally engaged in (i) resort and property
development; and (ii) property and investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company and a
jointly controlled entity of the Group are set out in notes 40
and 17, respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 38.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group did not have any purchases and suppliers during
the year and at the end of the reporting period, respectively.
The Group did not have any revenue and customers during the
year and at the end of the reporting period, respectively.

Accordingly, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders of the Company which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the issued share capital of
the Company, had any beneficial interest in the share capital of
any of the five largest customers (if any) of the Group.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year ended 30 June 2013 in
the investment properties of the Group are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year ended 30 June 2013 in
the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRESE

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Details of the major properties of the Group as at 30 June
2013 are set out on page 128.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year ended 30 June 2013
in share capital of the Company are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium.

In the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of the Company
available for distribution to shareholders as at 30 June 2013
amounted to HK$126,127,000 (2012: HK$124,903,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond (Managing Director
(re-appointed on 15 August 2012))

Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus (Chairman)

Ms. Ng Kit Ling (appointed on 15 August 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lun Tsan Kau

Mr. Su Ru Jia

Mr. Lo Yun Tai

Mr. Chan Ming Fai, Terence
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRES

In accordance with Clauses 86(2) and 87(1) of the Company’s
Bye-Laws and the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, that Mr. Lun Tsan Kau (“Mr. Lun”) and
Mr. Su Ru Jia, two of our Independent Non-executive Directors,
shall retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of
the Company and they will be eligible to offer themselves
for re-election. All other Directors will continue in office. All
Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a term
of three years, subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

The Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting do not have any service contract
in writing with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the relevant members of the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Mr. Lun, having first been appointed by the Company in 2000,
has served as an Independent Non-executive Director for more
than nine years. To the best knowledge of the Directors, as at
the Latest Practicable Date, the Company is not aware of any
matter which may affect the independence of Mr. Lun. Mr.
Lun has performed his duties as an Independent Non-executive
Director to the satisfaction of the Board during his tenure of
office. Through exercising the scrutinizing and monitoring
functions as an Independent Non-executive Director, he has
contributed to the Board’s efficiency and in safeguarding the
interests of Shareholders. The Board is of the opinion that
Mr. Lun remains independent notwithstanding the length
of his service and believes that his valuable knowledge and
experience will continue to contribute to the continuous
improvement of the Board, the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRESE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

The Company and Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond (”"Mr.
Hung”), an Executive Director and the Managing Director of
the Company, entered into a subscription agreement dated
16 April 2013 in relation to the subscription by Mr. Hung of,
and pursuant to which Mr. Hung subscribed for, zero coupon
convertible bonds issued by the Company in the principal
amount of HK$31,080,000, further details of which are set
out in the circular issued by the Company dated 6 May 2013.
Save as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries is/was a party and in
which a Director has/had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

LITIGATIONS WITH A FORMER DIRECTOR,
MS. WONG KAR GEE, MIMI (“MS. WONG")

Reference is made to the Company’s Annual Report 2012.
After the dismissal of Ms. Wong’s claims against the Company
and its wholly owned subsidiaries in May 2012 and Ms. Wong
being ordered to pay all legal cost to the relevant defendants,
there are no significant legal proceedings between Ms. Wong
and the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in
the register of members required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
contained in the Listing Rules and the SFO, were as follows:
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRES

(i) Long position in Shares

Name of Director
EEnE

Mr. Hung*
i

Hung Kai Mau, Marcus
HLR

Ng Kit Ling

RE¥

Beneficial
owner

BEERA

344,117,701

2,960,000

10,000

Note:  These Shares were held by the following companies:

Malcolm Trading Inc.
Jaytime Overseas Ltd.

Malcolm Trading Inc. and Jaytime Overseas Ltd. are

wholly owned and controlled by Mr. Hung.

* Mr. Hung has confirmed to the Company that
10,010,056 Shares held in the name of Ms. Wong
were ordered to be transferred to him pursuant
to a court order in September 2013. After the
aggregation of such 10,010,056 Shares, Mr. Hung
will be interested in 429,150,640 Shares, representing
approximately 51.23% of the issued share capital of

the Company.

RO FREE
Number of Shares
ROBE
Held by Approximate
controlled % of
corporation Total shareholding
M ESEST
DREE et BOL

75,022,883 419,140,584 50.030%

(Note)
(PF5E)
- 2,960,000 0.353%
- 10,000 0.001%
MizE :  RERGBTIARFRE
Number of
Shares
ey id=
44,362,883
30,660,000
75,022,883

Malcolm Trading Inc. }2 Jaytime
Overseas Ltd. ¥ &R A AT A &
P o

* B ERER-_E—=FHAKIE
SR EERARNTER TX
T#A AR AR 10,010,056 A% A&
M FELHEE - MAK
10,010,056 & A& 17 1% - 4k 52 4 %
$8429,150,640 fE A% {7+ HEER
IEANRRIB B TIRAL51.23% ©
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRESE

(i)

Interests in underlying Shares of the
Company

Underlying
Shares of
Name of Director the Company
NN
SN HERH
Mr. Hung 148,000,000
//\?Ei (NOTQ)
(BEE)

Note: These represent the Shares to be issued by the

Company upon exercise by Mr. Hung, as bondholder,
of the conversion rights attaching to the zero coupon
convertible bonds issued by the Company to Mr. Hung
pursuant to a subscription agreement between the
Company and Mr. Hung dated 16 April 2013, further
details of which are set out in the circular issued by
the Company dated 6 May 2013.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2013, none of

the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any

interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares

or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO

(including interests and short positions which they are taken or

deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), the Model

Code and which were required to be entered into and kept

under the register pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO.

(i) ADFEERG 2ER

Approximate
% of issued

Conversion share capital

price Conversion the of

per share period Company

BT

2#1T

BRA 2 B4

BRATBRE AR BOL

HK$0.21 29/05/2013 17.67%
0.21%7T -28/05/2018
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRES

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

The directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries are entitled to participate in the share option
scheme of the Company adopted by the Company on 15
November 2012 (the “Scheme”). Particulars of the Scheme are
set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares or debentures of the Company or any
other associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) and none of the Directors or their spouses or
children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for
securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights
during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed above and under the section headed
“Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures”, as at 30 June 2013, the Company has not been
notified of any other person having interests representing 5%
or more in the Company’s issued share capital and recorded in

the register maintained under Section 336 of the SFO.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to the guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 30 June 2013, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRESE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Company entered
into a subscription agreement with Mr. Hung, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to issue, and Mr. Hung agreed to
subscribe for the convertible bonds in the principal amount
of HK$31,080,000 in cash. These transactions constitute
connected transactions of the Company and are required to be
disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with those disclosure requirements
and the relevant disclosures are set out in note 38(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during
the year ended 30 June 2013 are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group made
charitable and other donations of HK$80,000 (20712:
HK$12,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 30 June 2013.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited,
Certified Public Accountants, as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Hung Kai Mau, Marcus
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 September 2013
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Corporate Governance Report
TRER/RBEE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report for the
year ended 30 June 2013.

The Company has complied with the provisions (“Code
Provisions”) of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in the
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
("Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) throughout the corresponding effective
periods of the financial year.

After specific enquiries of each of the directors of the Company
(“Directors”), the Directors confirm that they have complied
with the standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”),
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has always been committed to good corporate
governance principles and practices to safeguard the interests
of its Shareholders and uphold accountability, transparency and
responsibility of the Company.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that the Company continues to meet the
requirements of the CG Code. A narrative summary of how the
Company has applied the key corporate governance principles
as set out in the CG Code, and explanations of any deviations
thereto, is set out below.
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THE BOARD

()

(i)

Board Composition

Executive Directors

1. Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond (Managing
Director (re-appointed on 15 August 2012 and
father of Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus))

2. Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus (Chairman and son
of Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond)

3. Ms. Ng Kit Ling (appointed on 15 August 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lun Tsan Kau

Mr. Su Ru Jia

Mr. Lo Yun Tai

Mr. Chan Ming Fai, Terence

HwnN =

Save as stated above, there is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material relevant
relationship(s)), among members of the Board.

Responsibility

The business and affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are under the direction of
and vested with the Board pursuant to the bye-laws
of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The Board is the
ultimate decision-making body of the Group except
in respect of matters reserved for Shareholders. The
Board is ultimately accountable and responsible for
the performance and affairs of the Group and for the
preparation of the accounts of the Company. The Board
retains overall responsibility for all major matters of
the Group, which include approving and monitoring
all policy matters, managing overall strategies and
budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, entering into material transactions (especially
any transactions which may involve a conflict of interest
within the Board), providing financial information,
appointing the Directors and other significant financial
and operational matters. Certain authority is delegated
by the Board to the management of the Company
(led by the Managing Director) in order to enable the
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management to develop and implement the Group’s
strategic plans and operations, and to conduct the
Group's day-to-day activities. The Company maintains
a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for
Board approval. The Board also informs and gives
clear directions to management on the matters that
must be approved by the Board before decisions are
made on the Company’s behalf. The Board diligently
monitors the management’s performance in that regard
but responsibility for conducting the Group’s daily
operations rests with the management.

The role of the Group’s Chairman is separated from that
of the Group’s Managing Director and their respective
responsibilities are set out by the Board. The Managing
Director is responsible for day-to-day management of
the business of the Group, whilst the Chairman provides
leadership for the Board to ensure that the Board acts
diligently and in the best interests of the Group, and
that meetings are planned and conducted effectively.
The Chairman is also responsible for approving the
agenda for each Board meeting, taking into account,
where appropriate, matters proposed by the Directors.
The Chairman also actively encourages the Directors
to make full contributions and actively participate in
the Board's affairs. It is also the responsibility of the
Chairman to ensure that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established.

The Board has established three Board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, to oversee
particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. The Company
reviews the authorities of the above committees on a
regular basis to ensure that they remain appropriate
to the needs of the Company. The Board and the
Board committees work under the well established
corporate governance practices in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.
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(iii)

(iv)

Each Director of the Company is provided, upon
reasonable request made to the Board, with means,
at the Company’s expense, to seek independent
professional advice in furtherance of his/her duties if
necessary. The Independent Non-executive Directors
are high calibre executives or professionals with
relevant and/or professional industry experience who
provide their skills and expertise to the Board. Their
brief biographical details are on pages 11 to 13 of
this Annual Report. They ensure that the Board and
the Company maintain high standards in its financial
and other mandatory reporting obligations as well as
provide adequate checks and balances to safeguard the
interests of the Shareholders and the Company as a
whole.

The Board regularly reviews its composition and
structure to ensure appropriate levels of expertise and
independence are attained and maintained.

Appointment and Succession Planning of
the Directors

The Company has established a nomination committee
which comprises of a majority of Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Company follows a formal,
considered and transparent procedure for the
appointment and removal of Directors. All Directors
who are appointed to fill casual vacancies are subject
to re-election at the first general meeting after their
appointments by the Board. At the Annual General
Meetings of the Company, one third of the Directors for
the time being (or where the number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to, but not greater than
one third), including the Independent Non-executive
Directors, are subject to retirement by rotation and
shall be eligible for re-election. All Independent Non-
executive Directors are appointed for a term of three
years, subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

Continuous Professional Development of
the Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive
and formal induction to ensure that he/she has an
appropriate understanding of (i) the business and
operations of the Group; (ii) his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements; (iii) the corporate governance
code of the Company and (iv) the Model Code.

(iii)

(iv)
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The Directors are continuously updated with legal
and regulatory developments, and the business and
market changes to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities and to ensure that and are fully aware
of their duties and responsibilities under statute and
common law, the Listing Rules and the Company’s
business and governance policies. Continuing briefings
and professional development to Directors will be
arranged whenever necessary.

The Company has received from each of the Directors a
record of training they received during the year ended 30
June 2013. A summary of such training is listed as follows:

Name of Director EEHE
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond A
Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus sy ity
Ms. Ng Kit Ling RRB I
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHBITEE
Mr. Lun Tsan Kau REIREE
Mr. Su Ru Jia BOUERE
Mr. Lo Yun Tai BB E
Mr. Chan Ming Fai, Terence PR BAIEE 5 A
A: Attending training courses and/or seminars,

conferences, workshops or forums relevant to the
Company’s business, Listing Rules, etc.

B: Reading journals and updates relevant to the
Company’s business or directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

(v) Company Secretary’s Training (v)

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the
Company Secretary must take no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in each financial year. The
Company Secretary provided his training records to the
Company indicating that he has undertaken more than
15 hours of relevant professional development during
the year ended 30 June 2013, by means of attending
seminars and reading relevant guidance materials.
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P ERREERRRATES -
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—ZHEXRAZ=THLEFERZEIR
B o I BEMT

Type of training
EIEE

A, B
A, B
A B

A B
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(vi) Securities Transactions (vi) BERXS
The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding RAREEA—EFEETER ETHR
securities transactions by the Directors of the Company BB 8+ Pl < B AESP R - (ERAARR
(the “Securities Code”) on terms no less strict than the BIERETELSR S 2T ([
standard set out in Model Code contained in Appendix Z<PRl) o BIBFSTE - ARAE
10 of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Securities ERETEANARRBERSA - A
Code, a Director must, among other things, notify the EEBAEF S HRIEA RUE) H I
Chairman or his/her alternate in writing of the specific ERAMNNERE - KERBREFHER
purpose of a proposed dealing in the securities of the HEHEEFESHSFRIPIRATERE
Company and obtain a dated written acknowledgement B
prior to any such dealing. All Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Securities Code.
(vii) Contribution by Directors (vii) EESWNEE
The Board regularly reviews the contribution required EEgEHRIBREFHARAE
from a Director to perform his responsibilities to the TEREUNTHESERERERT
Company to assess whether the Director is spending GE o EWMEHE REZBLHETHR
sufficient time performing them. The attendance &% ARRRRBFERE - AAA
record of the Directors at the regular meetings of the RREFNREREEZESSEAHY
Board, annual general meeting of the Company, special IR
general meetings of the Company and the Committee
meetings during the reporting period is as follows:
Annual Special Remuneration ~ Nomination Audit
Board general general  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
meeting  meeting*  meeting** meeting meeting meeting
attended/  attended/  attended/  attended/  attended/  attended/
held held held held held held
LEEE  EERR HRRR  GEEM 0 LERS HEEK
g83F BFAe* REKE~ ZE883 ZE8E€8 Z58fR
Name of Director ESi? RE/BE KB/ REB/HE RE/HEE RE/EB RB/4Y
Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond 4564

(re-appointed on i

15 August 2012) NATHREEZf) 1011 i i 44 " NATNEE
Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus 64 1011 11 /1 45 NANER  NATER
Ms. Ng Kit Ling RERLT

(appointed on (M=%

15 August 2012) NATHREZR) 111 i " NATEE  NATER  NATEE
Mr. Lun Tsan Kau mERRLE 10/11 " "1 565 /1 0
Mr. SuRu Jia Bk 10/11 o/t ot 55 NATER 0
Mr. Lo Yun Ta BEGRE 1011 /1 /1 5/5 i 0
Mr. Chan Ming Fai, Terence  FRERR 4 911 17 11 5/5 i W
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(viii)

(ix)

* This meeting was the 2012 annual general meeting of
the Company held on 15 November 2012.

*x This meeting was the special general meeting of the
Company held on 22 May 2013.

Corporate Governance Functions

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Board was
responsible for and performed the following corporate
governance duties:

€)] developing and reviewing the Company'’s
policies and practices on corporate governance;

(b) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management;

(©) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements;

(d) developing, reviewing and monitoring code of
conduct and compliance manuals applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(e) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
Code Provisions and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company is committed to equality of opportunity
in all aspects of its business and does not discriminate
on the grounds of race, gender, disability, nationality,
religious or philosophical belief, age, sexual orientation,
family status or any other factor.

(viii)

(ix)
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The Company continuously seeks to enhance the
effective of its Board and to maintain the highest
standards of corporate governance and enhance the
benefits of diversity in the boardroom. The Company
sees diversity as a wide concept and believes that
a diversity of perspectives can be achieved through
consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to skills, regional and industrial experiences,
background, race, gender and other qualities. In
infusing its perspective on diversity, the Company will
also take into account facts based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time.

The Company endeavors to ensure that its Board
has the appropriate balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives that are required to support the
execution of its business strategy and in order for the
Board to be effective.

Board appointments will continue to be made on a
merit basis and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. The Board believes that
such merit-based appointments will best enable
the Company to sure its shareholders and other
stakeholders going forward.

The Nomination Committee is primary responsible for
identifying suitably qualified candidates to become
members of the Board and in carrying out this
responsibility will give adequate consideration to this
Policy.

The Company will review this Policy on a regular basis
to ensure its continued effectives. In addition, the
Company will disclosed details of this Policy and any
measureable objectives it has set itself in this regard
in the Corporate Governance Report set at its Annual
Report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established
on 20 April 2005 and includes a majority of Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee comprises
two Executive Directors, Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond (re-
appointed on 15 August 2012) and Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus
and four Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lun
Tsan Kau (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Su
Ru Jia, Mr. Lo Yun Tai and Mr. Chan Ming Fai, Terence.

The purpose of the Remuneration Committee is to assist
the Board of the Company in determining the policy and
structure for the remuneration of Executive Directors,
evaluating the performance of Executive Directors, reviewing
incentive schemes and Directors’ service contracts and fixing
the remuneration packages for all Directors and senior
management. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee has been made available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company’s website.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
has reviewed the Chairman’s remuneration, annual special
bonus to Executive Directors, the annual salary review for staff,
the remuneration for newly appointed Directors and made
recommendations of the above to the Board for approval.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established
on 15 August 2012 and includes a majority of Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee comprises
one Executive Director, Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lun Tsan
Kau, Mr. Lo Yun Tai (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
and Mr. Chan Ming Fai, Terence. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
proposed changes to the Board and senior management of the
Company to complement the Company’s corporate strategy
after its reviews of the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board and senior management from time to time.
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The purpose of the Nomination Committee is to assist the
Board of the Company in identification of suitable individuals
qualified to become board members and senior management,
to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board and senior management and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board and senior management
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee has been made
available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company’s website.

Prior to the establishment of the Nomination Committee, the
Board as a whole was responsible for the functions of the
Nomination Committee, through its meetings held to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and senior
management from time to time.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
has reviewed the qualifications and experience of several
candidates applying for the post of Company Secretary and
made recommendations of suitable candidates to the Board
for approval. Also, the Nomination Committee had amended
its terms of reference in respect of “Board Diversity Policy”
on 23 September 2013 and then which was resolved by the
Board for the compliance of the Listing Rules. The revised
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee has been
made available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company’s website.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lun Tsan Kau (Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Su Ru Jia, Mr. Lo Yun Tai and Mr. Chan
Ming Fai, Terence. All of them have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise in accordance with the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee is responsible for reviewing and assessing together
with senior management and the external auditor of the
Company, the internal control system and external auditing
process and findings, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, Listing Rules and statutory compliance.
The members of the Audit Committee also meet to discuss
matters relating to auditing, internal control, risk management
and financial reporting (including the interim financial report of
the Group for the first six months of each financial year).
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include making
proposals and recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of the external auditor of the
Company and its terms of engagement and termination as
well as monitoring the independence and effectiveness of the
external auditor and recommending appropriate actions if
required.

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board
of the Company in considering how the Board should apply
financial reporting and internal control principles and to
maintain an appropriate relationship with the Company’s
auditor. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee has
been made available on the website of the Stock Exchange and
the Company’s website.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Audit Committee,
through its meetings with the external auditor, mainly worked
on the review and discussion of (i) the financial reporting
(including the interim report for the first six months ended 31
December 2012); (i) auditing; (iii) internal control and (iv) risk
management of the Group.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2013, payments made to Mazars
CPA Limited, the external auditor of the Company, for
providing audit and non-audit services were approximately
HK$520,000 and HK$80,000 respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board believes that a well-designed system of internal
control is crucial to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
ensure reliability of financial reporting as well as compliance
with the relevant rules and regulations. A system of internal
controls has been set up, with the intention of preventing
material misstatements and losses and, to manage and, where
possible, eliminate risks of failure in operational systems to
achieve the Group’s objectives.
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The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s internal
control, financial control and risk management system. The
Board also monitors their effectiveness from time to time, and
reviews the scope and frequency of audit reviews according
to risk assessment. Special reviews may also be conducted
on areas of concern identified by management or the Audit
Committee from time to time.

During the reporting year, the Board through the Audit
Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group, including the functions of financial,
operation, compliance and risk management. The review
showed that the internal control system operated, on the
whole, satisfactorily. The Board, also through the Audit
Committee, where necessary, initiated necessary improvements
and reinforcements to the internal control system.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of Shareholders and the procedures for demanding
a poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meeting are contained in
the Company’s Bye-laws. The Company’s Bye-laws have been
made available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company’s website. Amendments to the Listing Rules which
came into force on 1 January 2009 have made it mandatory
for all voting at meetings of shareholders of the Company
to be taken by way of poll. Effective 1 January 2012, the
Listing Rules have been amended to allow voting by poll on
procedural and administrative matters to be dispensed with by
the chairman of the meeting. The Company has taken steps to
ensure compliance with the requirements about voting by poll
and arrangements have been made for the voting of each of
the resolutions being put to the meetings to be dealt with by
means of poll pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Clause 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary of the Company, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. The purposes
of convening the meeting must be stated in the relevant
requisition, signed by all the shareholders concerned in one or
more documents in like form and deposited at the Company’s
head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report
TRER/RBEE

At general meetings, the Board and the respective committee
members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee are responsible for answering
questions raised by the Shareholders. The auditor of the
Company will also attend the annual general meeting to
answer questions raised by the Shareholders on the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report,
the accounting policies and auditor independence.

In order to provide detailed and up-to-date information to our
shareholders, the Company has a range of communication
channels to ensure its shareholders are kept well-informed.
These comprise communication by way of general meetings,
annual reports, public notices, announcements and circulars.

The Company seeks to enhance communications and positive
relationships with investors by maintaining regular dialogues
with institutional investors and analysts to keep them updated
about the business, operations and development of the Group,
and by replying to any enquiries from investors appropriately.
Investors are welcome to make enquiries to the Company
at its office in Hong Kong or visit the Company’s website
(www.applieddev.com) directly for updated corporate and
financial information on the Group.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests to the
following:

Address:  Units 3402-3, 34th Floor, China Merchants Tower,
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)
Fax: (852) 2873 4676

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and/
or send the original duly signed written requisition, notice
or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) at or to the
above address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as permitted or required by law.

Shareholders may also call the Company at (852) 2520 8600
for any assistance.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERER/RBEE

THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders’ meetings provide a principal forum for
dialogue between Shareholders and the Company. The
Board encourages Shareholders to attend and welcomes
their participation. For the annual general meeting of the
Company, notice of the meeting and the related circular are
dispatched to the Shareholders of the Company at least 20
clear business days before the meeting. Separate resolutions
for each substantial issue, including the election of Directors,
is proposed at the annual general meeting and details of the
poll voting procedures and rights of Shareholders to demand a
poll are included in the related circular. Poll results in respect of
each resolution proposed at the annual general meeting will be
published by way of an announcement after the close of the
meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Board’s knowledge of the public float is based on
information publicly available to the Company. As at the date
of this report, over 25% of the total issued share capital of the
Company was held by the public.

THE BOARD’S STATEMENT

The Company believes that good corporate governance
reflects a high quality of management and operations of the
Group's operations and business. Good corporate governance
can safeguard the proper use of funds and ensure effective
allocation of resources which in turn, will protect the interests
of the shareholders. The management recognises the
importance of good corporate governance practices and will
use its best endeavours to maintain, strengthen and improve
the standard and quality of the Group’s corporate governance.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
BYZBETHRES

MAZARS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
APPLIED DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Applied Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 38 to
126, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2013, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

Mazars CPA LIMITED
SR @ ot o4 05 A A

42nd Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
T AT S 1 8 9% P R R 424
Tel H#fi: (852) 2909 5555

Fax {2 E(: (852) 2810 0032

Email % #: info@mazars.hk

Website f81k: www.mazars.cn
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
BAYZBEIHRES

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30
June 2013, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 September 2013

Eunice Y M Kwok
Practising Certificate number: P04604
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
REXEREE

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—CF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bk TEn T
Turnover EE 5 - 3,296
Other revenue H gz 5 9 382
Other income HAMA 6 487 883
Other operating expenses HinBEmY 9 (2,066) @,277)
Net increase (decrease) in fair values REMELTFE
of investment properties Rl ) 348 14 18,103 (20,111
Administrative expenses TREMR (25,211) (23,909)
Interest income on promissory note Y — R SRR A )
receivable from a jointly controlled ESIES WAV N
entity 22 11,926 10,931
Finance costs REMAR 8 (6,668) (6,310)
Share of results of a jointly controlled FEfE —FR R AR
entity HER 17 - -
Loss before tax BB AT R 9 (3,420) (39,115)
Taxation G| 10 1,146 (5,768)
Loss for the year, attributable to FEFR BEXQT
equity holders of the Company BRESEA 11 (2,274) (44.883)
Other comprehensive (loss) income Hivn2m (F8) Wi
ltem that may be subsequently A enERENHE
reclassified to profit or loss: ZEH7ER
— Change in fair value of -AHEEREL
available-for-sale investments NEHEEL 58 -
- Exchange difference arising on - BEBNEB
translation of foreign operations R (373) -
Item that will not be reclassified BIreEmsEe
to profit or loss: Bm2EE :
— Release of deferred tax arising from - BERBELEZEL
revaluation surplus WIE 2 R 31 - 119
Other comprehensive (loss) income FEEHMB2E (FA)
for the year, net of tax Wi o BH% (315) 119
Total comprehensive loss for the year, EEXEESELH
attributable to equity holders BEADRREREA
of the Company (2,589) (44,764)
LOSS PER SHARE BRER 13
Basic YN (0.27) HK cents B4l (5.36) HK cents /&l
Diluted & (0.27) HK cents 1l (5.36) HK cents /il
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR SRR

At30June 2013 ZE—=F"A=1H

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Promissory note receivable from a
jointly controlled entity

Other assets

Interest in a jointly controlled entity

Prepaid lease payments
— non-current portion
Available-for-sale investments

Current assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Trade and other receivables
Amount due from a
jointly controlled entity
Prepaid lease payments
— current portion
Bank balances and cash

Assets classified as held for sale

Current liabilities

Other payables

Secured bank borrowings
Convertible bonds

Obligation under a finance lease

Liabilities associated with assets
classified as held for sale

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

FARBEE
BEYE
ME - BE R
FEUR — FE 2L Rl
NEE R
Hih&E
A —EH RS AR
2
B AERE

— JERENE D
A IEERE

RBEE
BAFEZCEA
BRsMBEE
B 5 REAERFIR
JE W — R H Rl I
RALZFIA
BENHREFR

— RBED

RITHEENRE

DERFHENEE

REAE
H A FE IR
EHEMRTEE
ARRRE
BEML AR

DERFHENEE
ZARAE

RBREFE
REERRBAE

Note
BsE

14
15

22
16

18
19

20
21

23

18
24

25

26
27
38
28

25

2013 2012
—E-=F —T—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER THET
373,587 336,900
4,530 5,134
144,314 132,388
1,973 1,045
1,511 1,551
278 220
526,193 477,238
- 1,033
26,179 23,526
16,763 16,763
40 40
18,098 7,824
61,080 49,186
- 16,778
61,080 65,964
19,385 3,644
78,311 75,758
40,906 -
1,162 1,124
139,764 80,526
- 1,928
139,764 82,454
(78,684) (16,490)
447,509 460,748
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR SRk

At30June 2013 ZE—=F"A=1H

Capital and reserves EXRR#E
Share capital [N
Metn s B R i#EE

Share premium and reserves

Total equity AR
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible bonds AR EE
Obligation under a finance lease BB AL EE
Deferred tax liabilities BIETHIARE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 126 were

2013 2012

—E-=F —E—-—F

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FET
29 8,378 8,378
411,578 406,155

419,956 414,533

38 22,745 39,099
28 595 1,757
31 4,213 5,359
27,553 46,215

447,509 460,748

FISEEFN6EMHBZEEVBREER

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

26 September 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

“E-=FAA T RNERETSHERK
T U MIESARRE -

Hung Kai Mau, Marcus
Chairman
FiE

Hung Kin Sang, Raymond

Managing Director

gt
BFELIE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ReERBER

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

DARREREAEL
Convertible ~ Investment Capital
Share Share bonds  revaluation Other redemption Capital Translation  Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve profits Total
gk REEf EARE

e ROEE RERRE i HtthE i EXBE HERE REBEA &g
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Ter TR TEn  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn  TEn  TEn

(the ) (Note2)  (Note3) (NQte 4) (the 5) (thg 6) (No\t\e )

() (b2 (3 (ke (WS (Wde) (M7
At 1 July 2011 RZE-—5+A-H 8,383 445 3,846 (400) 1325 11926 204,610 97 229,125 459,357
Loss for the year EERE - - - - - - - - (44883 (44883)

Other comprehensive income A2 EkE
Item that will ot be reclassified o~ BAEEHAEE

profitor loss: BRER
- Release of deferred tax on disposal - RIEENERET
of property BEZER - - - - 119 - - - - 119
Total comprehensive income AEERZE
(loss) for the year s (F8) 88 - - - - 119 - - - (44883 4764
Transfer to retained profits on HENERERE
disposal of property REEN - - - - (1,444) - - - 1,444 -
Transaction with equity holders ~ EREREAZRS
Repurchase of own shares mERH (5 - - - - 5 - - (60) (60)
(5 - - - (1.444) 5 - - 1,384 (60)
At30 June 2012 Ro2-—f%
~A=tH 8,378 445 3346 (400) - 11,931 204,610 97 185,626 414533
At 1 July 2012 RIZ-ZELA-B_ 8318 5 3846 (400) - 81T 204610 97 185606 4145533
Loss for the year EEEE - - - - - - - - a4 QY
Other comprehensive income (loss) 2 2EHE (F8)
ltem that may be subsequently BEZ S b
redlassified to profit or loss: Ea/BE:
-Changein fairvalue of avallable - IHERE L
for sale investments NER - - - 58 - - - - - 58
- Exchange difference arising on -BERNEHL
translation of foreign operations EREE - - - - - - - (373) - (373)
Total other comprehensive Et2ENE
income (loss) () £8 - - - 58 - - - (373) - (315)
Total comprehensive income AEER2E
(loss) for the year s (B8) 8% - - - 58 - - - (B73) 4 (2589
Transaction with equity holders ~ EREREAZRS
Issue of convertiole bonds K ARER - - 8,012 - - - - - - 8012
At 30 June 2013 RZ8-Z%
ABZTH 8378 445 11,858 (342) - 11,931 204,610 (276) 183352 419,956
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REeEnBER

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

Notes:

Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds or
consideration from issuance of the Company’s shares over
their par value. The application of the share premium account
is governed by Section 46(2) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended).

Convertible bonds reserve represents the equity component
(conversion rights) of the convertible bonds issued.

Investment revaluation reserve comprises the accumulated
gains and losses arising on the revaluation of available-for-sale
investments that have been recognised in other comprehensive
income, net of the amounts reclassified to profit or loss when
those investments are disposed of or are determined to be
impaired.

Other reserve represents the fair value adjustment at the date
of transfer of property, plant and equipment to investment
properties. Following the disposal of certain investment
properties previously transferred from property, plant and
equipment, the revaluation surplus attributable to these
investment properties included in the other reserve was
transferred to retained profits during the year ended 30 June
2012.

Capital redemption reserve has been set up and is dealt with
on repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own
shares. The application of the capital redemption reserve
is governed by Section 42A of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended).

Capital reserve represents contributed surplus arising from
the cancellation of share premium account of the Company
pursuant to a special resolution passed by the Company on
22 February 1999 and waivers of loans from the then minority
shareholders of subsidiaries of the Company during the years
ended 30 June 2006 and 2008.

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations.

e

BREIEZHRIFMEAEEBHART
FITH R BB A IREE - X ERR
MEMRHBARE NN\ —FRFEE
46(2) & (RB{E7]) FEE -

AR IR R D R TR AR R
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KREBMFHREREHIHESREN
EENRFBNIBREAREME2ER
& EERE R ESREE RBER - Kk

MNEREEFNHREEE -

HitEBEENE  BERREBBEER
EMEZBENRATEZBAE -RBEE_T
——HFRA=TBILFE @v%E BF
RHEENETREVENHER - &%
BIERELREMEC BREHBRED
EHBHEREREEN -

BB OB N ARA AR E
BN - ZEAERRFENERAZHA
RE-NN—FRRDESE 42/ 1K (F&IEFT)
FRESE -

ARREIRBERARBR-ANANE A
“H-REBBZ AR HIRERAEHA
N HEEREN —ZERFR_EE
NFERNA=ZTHIEFEREHRREN QR
BRARZLVBERZFEMEENHRE
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RHYNEZEEA
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERTRER

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Dividend income
Finance costs
Exchange difference
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
(Gain) Loss on disposal of financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Loss on disposal of investment
properties
Impairment loss on trade and
other receivables
Interest income on promissory note
receivable from a jointly
controlled entity
Interest income
Net (increase) decrease in fair values
of investment properties
Net decrease in fair values of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Release of prepaid lease payments

Operating cash flows before
changes in working capital

Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Other payables
Amount due from a related party
Cash used in operating activities

Overseas tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

REEY

BRI RI 1R

AEIER

E =)
RiBZITE

B B HA

BB R
PEHERR
HEME - BER
iz s

HERAFER(CFARRZ

MBEE (Kat) BER

HEREYFR 2 B8

B5 NAMRKFIAZ
HEEE

JE Y — ) AR I 2 B Y
AR 2 F B IA

A BUA
REWHENTE (EmM)
AR
BEAHER(CRABRZ
MBEEL
RNFERDFER
FRER RN E IR

EEESRHAIZ
RERER

HAb I FR0R
& W — RAHSE T3 2 FROR

REFHRAZRE

MRS H

REFHFRAZRE TR

2013 2012
—E-=F —T—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(3.420) (39,115)
1,215 772
(19) (95)
6,668 6,310
(90) -
- (786)
(468) 3,499
- 225
- 553
(11,926) (10,931)
9) (382)
(18,103) 20,111
- 872
40 40
(26,112) (18,927)
(2,653) (19,076)
5,412 (1,544)
- 78
(23,353) (39,469)
- (541)
(23,353) (40,010)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERER

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to investment properties

Advance to a jointly controlled entity

Deposits received on disposal of
investment properties

Dividend received

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of investment
properties

Purchase of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Purchase of other assets

Purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash from investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance charges paid in respect of
obligation under a finance lease
Interest on convertible bonds
Interest on bank borrowings
New bank borrowings raised
Issue of convertible bonds,
net of issue costs
Repayment of bank borrowings
Repayment of obligation under a
finance lease
Repurchase of own shares

Net cash from (used in)
financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year

REED

IR B YR

ER T —RAREH AR
HEREYEEZS

EUALE
EUFLE
HEWE - BEK
il et
HERAFER(CFARRZ
M EE 2 W

HEREY R 2 W

BAR A HERCEA
B MBEE

BARMEE

BAYE  BFEEEE

REFBDMEBZREFE

BMEEE
MEHEREDNREER

AARERR 2 F 8
ERIRITEFRF S
FTIGIRTTE
BATAAREE
FERBEITROAR
BERITER

EERBMERLERE
ol A

BMEEZERE (FTA)
ZHREFE

RERREFENZ
#n O ) FEE

FNRERBEEED

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes YMBHE H K& E) v F &

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year, represented by
bank balances and cash
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R MR

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. Its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and the principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the section headed
“Corporate Information” in the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The Group is principally engaged in resort and property
development and property investment and investment
holding. The activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company and a jointly controlled entity of the Group
are set out in notes 40 and 17 to these consolidated
financial statements respectively.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting
policies adopted in the 2012 consolidated financial
statements except for the adoption of certain new/
revised HKFRSs effective from the current year that
are relevant to the Group. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 12: Deferred Tax. Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The amendments introduce a rebuttable presumption
that, if a deferred tax liability or asset arises from
investment property carried at fair value under HKAS
40: Investment Property, the carrying amount of
the investment property will be recovered through
sale. This presumption is rebutted if the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. In addition, the
amendments incorporate the guidance in HK(SIC) —
Int 21: Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-
Depreciable Assets in the standard.

The adoption of the above amendments does not
have significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 require the reporting entity
to group together items within other comprehensive
income that may be reclassified to profit or loss section
of the income statement. The amendments also reaffirm
existing requirements that items in other comprehensive
income and profit or loss should be presented as either
a single statement or two consecutive statements.
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e IR R MR

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

The amendments have been applied retrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other
comprehensive income has been modified to reflect
the change. Other than the change in presentation of
other comprehensive income, the application of the
amendments does not have any significant impact on
the Group.

Going concern

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with the principles applicable
to a going concern basis. The applicability of these
principles is dependent upon the Group’s future
profitable operation and the bank’s continuing finance
in the future in view of the excess of current liabilities
over current assets. The substantial shareholder has
undertaken unconditionally to provide the Company
at any time at the request of the Company with an
interest free loan to maintain the Group as a going
concern.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements is historical
cost, except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 30 June each year. The financial statements of its
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year
as that of the Company using consistent accounting
policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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Non-controlling interests are presented separately in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and within equity in the consolidated statement of
financial position, separately from equity holders of the
Company. The non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets in the event of liquidation, is measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
instrument’s proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This
choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the equity
holders of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to the equity holders of the Company and the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the equity holders of the Company.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.
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In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. The carrying amount
of the investments is reduced to its recoverable amount
on an individual basis. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or building that are
held by owner or lessee under finance lease to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include properties held for a currently undetermined
future use, properties that are being constructed or
developed for future use as investment properties and
properties that are held under operating lease, which
satisfy the definition of investment property and are
carried at fair value.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising
from a change in fair value is recognised in profit or
loss. Where appropriate, the fair value of investment
property is based on a valuation by an independent
valuer who holds a recognised professional qualification
and has recent experience in the location and category
of property being valued.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or
loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than properties
under development, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Properties under development are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes
development expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised
and other directly attributable expenses incurred during
the development period.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of items of property,
plant and equipment, other than properties under
development, over their estimated useful lives from
the date on which they are available for use and after
taking into account their estimated residual value, using
the straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Freehold land Nil
Leasehold land Over the term of the
and buildings leases or 25 years,
whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 25%
equipment
Motor vehicles 10% to 33',%
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets or, whereas shorter, the terms of the relevant

leases.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of
that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
year in which the item is derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to
acquire fixed-term interests in lessee-occupied land. The
premiums are stated at cost and are amortised over the
period of the lease on a straight-line basis to profit or
loss.

Other assets

Other assets are antiques and artworks held for long-
term investment purposes and are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Jointly controlled entity

Joint venture arrangements that involve the
establishment of a separate entity in which venturers
have joint control and none of the venturers has
unilateral control over the economic activity of the
entity are referred to as a jointly controlled entity.
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The Group’s investment in a jointly controlled entity is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting.
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results of the jointly controlled entity for the year. The
consolidated statement of financial position includes
the Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly
controlled entity and also goodwvill.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, unrealised profits or losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the jointly controlled entity, except to the extent that
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case, the full amount of
losses is recognised.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is
highly probable and the asset is available for immediate
sale in its present condition. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one
year from the date of classification.

Investment properties that are classified as held for
sale are measured at their fair values at the end of the
reporting period.
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one
of the three categories, which are financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. The accounting
policies adopted in respect of each category of financial
assets are set out below.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. They are carried at fair
value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are (i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; (i) part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or (iii) derivatives that are not financial
guarantee contracts or not designated and effective
hedging instruments.
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Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss if (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses
on a different basis; or (ii) they are part of a group
of financial assets and/or financial liabilities that are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or (iii) they contain embedded
derivatives that would need to be separately recorded.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables, including promissory note
receivable, trade and other receivables, amount due
from a jointly controlled entity and bank balances and
cash, are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At the end of each reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less accumulated impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset, other than
those at fair value through profit or loss, is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed
in subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised. Once a financial
asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest
income is thereafter recognised using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated at this
category or not classified in any of the other categories
of financial assets. They are measured at fair value with
changes in value recognised as a separate component
of equity until the assets are sold, collected or otherwise
disposed of, or until the assets are determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously reported in equity is transferred to profit or
loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired,
an amount comprising the difference between its
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any previously
recognised impairment loss, is transferred from equity
to profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
instrument are not reversed through profit or loss.
Any subsequent increase in fair value of available-for-
sale equity instrument after recognition of impairment
loss is recognised in equity. Reversal of impairment
loss of available-for-sale debt instruments are reversed
through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of
the instrument can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities are recognised initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using effective interest method, unless the effect
of discounting would be insignificant, in which case
they are stated at cost.
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Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recorded at the proceeds, net of
direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial asset are derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from
the financial asset expire or (i) when the Group transfers
the financial asset and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant
and equipment, prepaid lease payments, investments
in antiques and artworks, subsidiaries and a jointly
controlled entity have suffered an impairment loss or
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on
the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets
that generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense
immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Convertible bonds

The component of the convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in
the consolidated statement of financial position, net of
issue costs.

On the issue of the convertible bonds, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using a market
rate for a similar bond that does not have a conversion
option; and this amount is carried as a liability on the
amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or
redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option that is recognised and included
in the convertible bond reserve within shareholders’
equity, net of issue costs. The value of the conversion
option carried in equity is not changed in subsequent
years. When the conversion option is exercised, the
balance of the convertible bond reserve is transferred
to share premium account or other appropriate reserve.
When the conversion option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance remained in the convertible
bond reserve is transferred to retained profits. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the option.
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Issue costs are apportioned between the liability and
equity components of the convertible bonds based
on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and
equity components when the instruments are first
recognised. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
the convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, with reference to fair value of consideration
received or receivable, and on the following bases:

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
when the properties are let out and on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Interest income from financial assets is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the Group's rights to receive payment have been
established.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception
of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability
to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as finance lease obligations. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease obligations so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly
to profit or loss unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s policy on borrowing costs.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
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as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are TREAA B ARVEHR
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building HE L+ RIEF

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of
lease classification. Leasehold land which title is not
expected to pass to the lessee by the end of the lease
term is classified as an operating lease unless the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, in which case, the entire lease is
classified as a finance lease.
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Foreign currency translation

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (“foreign currencies”)
are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period except
for differences arising on the retranslation on non-
monetary items in respect of which gain and losses
are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in
equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component
of equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M EE

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

SHERE
REREENEEER B HHRE
B AREBI BRI B

(5N 1) EITZ R BTN R 5 B H
ZEXRBESEINEEY (ZEE
RERE L TRRBFRRZEE) -
RB|ERR - MINEEEZEHIAR
TiREERAZEREHRE - BAF
BIRMEAINEEEZIFERIRR T
BERVEETER CEXEHR
B o DIONEFHEBXE SR ARARZ
FEWIEAHTIRE -

ERHEREREREREREEL Y
EREZRINEL 2 BMERER -
BT EREE BN ER
KESEBERERCEST  BE
MMENIEEKIEE AEZBRZ A
FERERBRAAR -

MEIGEAMBHREAMS - AKEE
IR EERBEAKRERE

[EXBESAEEZ2E% (A8
7o) MABBZRAKFSIAR JHRF
EHIRFEERME - FRIFEAER
HIREARME - BIRUEIER T - 5K
ARZGEMZER - FIELERZR
(2nE ) BERSIARE L 2 B D
(MERE)  AHEREZENZIER
SN B IR AR R R -

Applied Development Holdings Limited EhZ%#&BAR 2R Annual Report 2013 F#



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R MR
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Retirement benefit scheme

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme is charged as expenses when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Details of the retirement benefit scheme are set out in
note 41 to these consolidated financial statements.

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Group

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
share options reserve in equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification
of the original award, as described above.
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When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

Borrowings costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction and production of qualifying assets
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as and
included in finance costs in profit or loss for the period
in which they are incurred.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the
results for the year as adjusted for items that are non-
assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, if the deferred tax arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for.

The deferred tax liabilities or assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or liability is settled, based on
the tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, tax
losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and a jointly
controlled entity, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value, net of bank
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overdrafts.

Related parties o)yl

A related party is a person or entity that is related to BEE T R AL EAANEANE
the Group. 5,

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:
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personnel of the Group or of the parent AR ERAENK
of the Group. 8-
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An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity and include:
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(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(0) dependants of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s chief operating decision
maker for the purpose of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made various estimates and
judgements which are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Estimates and judgements are
continually evaluated. The key source of estimation
uncertainty and critical judgements made in applying
accounting policies that result in significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities in the next financial year or
significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements are discussed below:
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The management determines the estimated
useful lives of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of the relevant assets
of similar nature and functions. The estimated
useful lives could be different as a result of
actual usage and maintenance, which could
affect the related depreciation charges included
in profit or loss.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The management determines whether the
Group's property, plant and equipment are
impaired where an indication of impairment
exists. This requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment, which is equal to the higher of net
selling price or the value in use. Estimating the
value in use requires the management to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the property, plant and equipment and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. Any impairment will be charged to profit
or loss.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The management determines the provision for
impairment of the Group’s loans and receivables
based on the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each customer
and other debtors and the current market
condition. If the financial conditions of the
Group’s customers and other debtors were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, provision may be
required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R MR

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

(ii)

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Company and the Group assess annually
if their investments in subsidiaries and a jointly
controlled entity have suffered any impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 and follow the
guidance of HKAS 39 in determining whether
promissory note receivable and/or amounts
due from those entities are impaired. Details
of the approach are stated in the respective
accounting policies. The assessment requires
an estimation of future cash flows, including
expected dividends, from the assets and the
selection of appropriate discount rates. Future
changes in financial performance and position
of these entities would affect the estimation of
impairment loss and cause the adjustments of
their carrying amounts.

Critical judgements made in applying accounting
policies

Properties held for capital appreciation

The Group's investment properties under
development in the Republic of Panama
(the "Panama”) with a carrying value of
HK$115,500,000 (2012: HK$106,900,000) are
held for capital appreciation after development
but not for own use. Accordingly, the properties
under development in Panama have been
accounted for as investment properties instead
of property, plant and equipment in the
consolidated financial statements.

(ir)

IRE R SEW R R E
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ARERKOE S @ E DR
EERG  BAmARBREK
HEfE

JER S5 R A9 EA BT

BEAEEYFE

AEBTE2SHNE (B
5 BRINEEMEZE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the
following new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the
Group and are not yet effective for the current year,
which the Group has not early adopted.

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
Amendments to
HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Various HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 32

Employee Benefits '

Separate Financial Statements '

Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Consolidated Financial
Statements '
Joint Arrangements '

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities '

Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance '

Fair Value Measurement '

Annual Improvements Project
2009 - 2011 Cycle'!

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial

Assets and Financial Liabilities '

Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities 2

BERUBRE

BEQ 2 RRBE)

WRABEREZHERS  BEE
HEOAREEME T BT
BRI HREED - HAREE MR
A AR B R AR AR -

BEEFH AR
F195%
—E——%F)
B GFHAER
B275%
—E——%F)
B AER
552858
—E——%F)
AP EHRE
RIS 1058
BRI RE
HERIFE 1158
BEM RS
RIS 1258
AR E
RIS 1058
({587) -
F115%
(1&7T)
KEE125R
(f857)
BEM RS
RIS 1358
TRIBE B

SRR

[== R VAN

BAVGwE
ERIE 75
(1&37)

A4
F325%
(1&37)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

Amendments to Investment Entities —
HKAS 27 (2011), Amendments to Separate
HKFRS 10 Financial Statements,
and HKFRS 12 Consolidated Financial

Statements, Disclosures of
Interests in Other Entities ?

Amendments to Recoverable Amount Disclosures
HKAS 36 for Non-Financial Assets ?
Amendments to Novation of Derivatives and
HKAS 39 Continuation of Hedge
Accounting ?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 3
Amendments to Mandatory Effective Date
HKFRS 9 of HKFRS 9, Financial
and HKFRS 7 Instruments and Transition

Disclosures 3

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2015

The directors are in the process of assessing the possible
impact of the future adoption of these new/revised
HKFRSs, but are not yet in a position to reasonably
estimate their impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

BEAGHEN KEFE —HU
F275R BBHE - 55
%) HEHE K5
(4&77) - REMEFE #

SRMBImE  mIEE?
#RIZE 105%
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£30% Hp A AT
(#£37)

EBMBEE  HHFILAS
A 95

EBRBRE  BEYHEL LA

AERIZE 95R FEOR  HET
(1&8T) A ZREBNETT
NEET75R HA R B 7R
(1837)

' WoE-—=F—HA—Baz&Mn
ZEFEHRE AR

2 M-ZE—MF—-A—-Bak2&Min
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3 MW-E-RhF—HA—-Baz&Mn
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EERILHERRIRAZFHRT L
BRI BB TR E LR A BB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

3.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, available-for-sale investments, promissory
note receivable and amount due from a jointly
controlled entity, bank balances and cash,
trade and other receivables, other payables,
secured bank borrowings, convertible bonds
and obligation under a finance lease. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes to the consolidated
financial statements. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily on the promissory note receivable
from a jointly controlled entity and the Group’s
operation in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
and Panama. The currency giving rise to this risk
is United States dollar (“US$"). The Group does
not hedge its foreign currency risks because
the rate of exchange between HK$ and US$ is
stable under current market condition and the
existing currency exchange policies adopted
by the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region.

3.

BM%TA

(a)
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Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes
in interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
secured bank borrowings with floating interest
rates as at the end of the reporting period. The
interest rates and terms of repayment have
been disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group currently does
not have a policy to hedge against the interest
rate risk as management does not expect any
significant interest rate risk as at the end of the
reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest
rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s net loss would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$783,000 (20712:
HK$758,000), but there would be no impact on
the other equity reserves.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for the secured
bank borrowings in existence at that date. The
100 basis points increase or decrease represents
management'’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual end of the reporting
period. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for year 2012.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R MR

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

R ES

AEBEEAR THEREHR
AEBFBCERNRITEENT
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Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from trading of listed securities classified as
held-for-trading investments and available-for-
sales investments in the consolidated financial
statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group does not have significant exposure to
fluctuation of the quoted market price of the
listed securities as the impact for the change in
equity price is insignificant.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors
will default on their obligations to repay the
amounts due to the Group, resulting in a loss
to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is mainly
attributable to the promissory note receivable,
amounts due from related parties and amount
due from a jointly controlled entity.

The management closely monitors the financial
position of the jointly controlled entity and is
ready to take appropriate actions to safeguard
the interest of the Group as and when
necessary. Therefore, the Group’s exposure
to credit risk is to a large extent limited. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of the promissory note
receivable, amounts due from related parties
and amount due from a jointly controlled
entity as reported in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
is exposed to concentration of credit risk where
59% (2012: 63%) of the amounts due from
related parties is originated from a related party
of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

At the end of the reporting period, the
Company had a concentration of credit risk as
86% (2012: 87%) and 100% (2012: 100%) of
the total amounts due from subsidiaries were
due from the largest subsidiary and the top five
subsidiaries respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility
through banking facilities available. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants. At the end of the reporting
period, there was unutilised banking facilities of
approximately HK$4,000,000 available to the
Group (2012: HK$Nil).

The maturity profile of the financial liabilities
of the Group and the Company at the end
of the reporting period based on contractual
undiscounted payments is summarised below:

RBERKR KRFERE
ERBOETIARB% (—F
— 4 - 87%) K 100% (= F
—ZF 100%) 7RI R EM
— &AM B A~ =) N B Tl
BB ZFIA

BN )m R

REE R EREFEFEER
RHE S RIRTTEREREEPE
T  EREERRITEE
MABE YERETER
Lo TMEHKR AEH
RWFERAZRITEGEEEL
4,000,000 7T (ZF—=4F -
AE) o

EREHR - AREWEHE
BEREA KPTRT R ARITER R
TR B MEIEBURSIRINT

Group rEE
2013
—E-=F
Total
contractual On demand
carrying undiscounted  or less than
cash flow 1 year 1-5 years
BARREER RERR
AREAE ReRE DPR—F —ZhfF
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET THET
Other payables H A e FIA 15,192 15,192 -
Obligation under BB THAE
a finance lease 1,802 1,201 601
Secured bank borrowings B IEIREITEE 90,551 90,551 -
Convertible bonds QESES: 72,840 41,760 31,080
158,911 180,385 148,704 31,681
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2012
—E—F
Total
Total contractual On demand

carrying  undiscounted or less than

value cash flow 1 year 1-5 years
BAEKIAREEE BRERY
REAE Heng DR—1F —ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET FET TR
Other payables Hi IR 942 942 942 -
Obligation under BB TAEE
a finance lease 2,881 3,003 1,201 1,802
Secured bank borrowings B IEIRRITEE 75,758 88,919 88,919 -
Convertible bonds QR ES 39,099 41,760 - 41,760
118,680 134,624 91,062 43,562
Company NN
2013
—E-=fF
Total
Total contractual On demand
carrying undiscounted or less than
value cash flow 1 year 1-5 years
BEHNRIR RERY
REAE RERE DPR—%F —ZEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THERT THERT THERT THERT
Other payables H AR I 1,447 1,447 1,447 -
Amount due to e —FE
a subsidiary BB A FFIE 218,910 218,910 218,910 -
Convertible bonds QEES 63,651 72,840 41,760 31,080
284,008 293,197 262,117 31,080
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Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

2012
—E-—F
Total
Total contractual ~ On demand
carrying  undiscounted or less than
value cash flow 1 year 1-5 years
BENREE BERk
REAE Hene DR—F —ZEAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FAT FAT FAT
Other payables Hi IR 523 523 523 -
Amount due to FER—FA
a subsidiary R)EEVNEIE 6] 228,503 228,503 228,503 -
Convertible bonds QESES 39,099 41,760 - 41,760
268,125 270,786 229,026 41,760
The amounts repayable under a loan agreement RIBEEFHZ (BEHLTEE
that includes a clause that gives the lender the ABEGE DB ESRER
unconditional right to call the loan at any time B &R - FEEE IR 9 1A
are classified under the “on demand” bracket. BIRERE ] —# - 3ttm
In this regard, interest-bearing bank borrowings T EFEEERRITTIETE
of HK$78,311,000 (2012: HK$75,758,000) as HIEMESRER - 5T EBRITE
at the end of the reporting period have been ;78,311,000 (= F—=
so classified even though the directors do not 4F : 75,758,000, r ) 1HR
expect that the bank would exercise its rights to FHRDEG A - ILIEF
demand repayment and thus these borrowings, BHRITER - HRBEZNF
which include payment of interest, would be B BIRBRHNE R
repaid according to the following schedule as LARERREREE -
set out in the loan agreements:
Within Over
1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
R—FR —EHE BBRE g
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FAT FAT
At 30 June 2013 R-B-Z=F
~A=+H 10,702 18,810 61,039 90,551
At 30 June 2012 R-Z—_F
NA=TH 4,743 18,971 65,205 88,919
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(b)

Categories and fair value of
financial instruments

Fair value disclosures

The following table presents the carrying value
of financial instruments measured at fair value
at 30 June 2013 and 2012 across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures,
with the fair value of each financial instrument
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments;

Level 2: fair values measured using
guoted prices in active markets for
similar financial instruments, or using
valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly
based on observable market data;

Level 3 (lowest level): fair values
measured using valuation techniques in
which any significant input is not based
on observable market data.

(b)
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Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

Financial assets measured at fair value

KU FlEGTEZHBEE

Group rEH
At 30 June 2013
R-E-=§XA=tH
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
k) F-Z8 EZER E=ZH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Available-for-sale FIHEERE
investments:
Equity investments REBLTZ
listed in Hong Kong A ESH 278 278 - -
At 30 June 2012
R_E—_FXA=1H
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Eoks FER E-ER E=ER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THET FET
Available-for-sale AHEHERE
investments:
Equity investments REELTZ
listed in Hong Kong PR A E 220 220 - -
Financial assets at fair value /& 2\ F1E2HE
through profit or loss: FA Bz
ZHBEE
Held-for-trading BIEEER
investments listed BB LW
in Hong Kong ZIE 1,033 1,033 - -

During the years ended 30 June 2013 and
2012, there were no transfers between Level
1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and
no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value
measurements.

REBEE_ZT—=Fk=
FRNA=THLFE A¥E
HERE—ERARE-ZH2
R BER S BL A TFER
SEBAREBHRE=5HR
ﬁqo
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The carrying amounts of each of the following T Y G RERE R B 1A E R
categories of financial assets and financial BEMNKREBESSROT

liabilities are set out as follows:

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Loans and receivables measured &Rk A #hiEk Kt E
at cost/amortised cost: ZIEEREW -
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEYGRIE
(excluding prepayments and (MBREENRK
legal costs recoverable) A ez EEER) 2,903 4,152
Promissory note receivable from  JEUY—FE fLE1EHI A A
a jointly controlled entity EQIE S 144,314 132,388
Amount due from a jointly e — R LR I
controlled entity NAEZFRIE 16,763 16,763
Bank balances and cash WITHEFRES 18,098 7,824
182,078 161,127
Available-for-sale financial assets A F(Eif 22 A4
measured at fair value: HEMYBEEE -
Available-for-sale investments AHIEERE 278 220
Financial assets at fair value BN FEFTEZ
through profit or loss BLFEEEEA
measured at fair value: PBa B EE -
Held-for-trading investments FIEBEZIRE - 1,033
Financial liabilities measured P2 5=/
at cost/amortised cost: FEZHBEE
Other payables H b e~ 508 15,192 942
Secured bank borrowings SHEMRITEE 78,311 75,758
Obligation under a finance lease B & FHA)AJE 1,757 2,881
Convertible bonds QR e 63,651 39,099
158,911 118,680
In the opinion of the directors, the carrying BEREECER  EHEEVTH
amounts of the financial assets and liabilities MRS FTR NTR 2 B 15 & 2 R B
as reported in the consolidated statement of HBaEsEEERTEAF
financial position approximate their fair value. =R
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Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

4. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 4. EXREHE
The objectives of the Group’s capital management are AEBERER BHRREEFE
to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern AR ZEE ) - W RRERIREE
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits R AEAMF R E AR S A AR RS
for other stakeholders, to maintain an optimal capital HIBEERER - TREREKA
structure, to reduce the cost of capital and to support REBAEBE BERER
the Group’s stability and growth.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages REBFHREHRFHMREBEENR
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure HEEAMRBRIBE 2 EARGEE L E R
and shareholder returns, taking into consideration the RO FEEEAEEKRKZE
future capital requirements of the Group. In order to RER - R B EHFNAHZER
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may HEE o AEEJREFASELTRES
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, fRE 2 &5 FEITHRARLARE
issue new shares or return capital to shareholders. REER - REEZT—=FRK_Z
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or —ZHFRNA=t+HIEFE  BH#B
processes during the years ended 30 June 2013 and 2 BORSIEF A mEE) -
2012.
5.  TURNOVER AND REVENUE 5. EXRBERWE
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBR FHT
Turnover EER
Gross rental income from RITEYEREEHES A
investment properties - 3,296
Other revenue Hethug
Interest income FLEWA
Financial assets at fair value BAFEZ R ABR
through profit or loss LB EE - 376
Others Hh 9 6
9 382
Total revenue A 9 3,678
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Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. EHAlA
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Dividend income A& S A 19 95
Gain on disposal of financial assets HERAFEE L ABE
at fair value through profit or loss 2B EE 2 W 468 -
Gain on disposal of property, LEME - BE &
plant and equipment Rl - 786
Sundry income FETEIRA - 2
487 883
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. OEER
Management identifies operating segments based EREERERNBHIELEREE (1
on internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the REE) THEZARAE B
chief operating decision maker, who are the directors, BRRFHEERR 2 AR S AR
for the purposes of allocating resources to segments KREDH - EERBEBNER - W
and assessing their performance. The directors FRERREERDAEEXZLE
consider resort development, property investment and DEE o AEEZEBRNBERS A
investment holding are the Group’s major operating ZRABEBNTRAREBIERE
segments. The Group’s resort development segment JEoAESEaRERE g o TR
includes multi-purpose resort communities as well R EE RN RS EEZ A BREK
as sale of condo hotels, residential units and club A MEREDHEERIEHE NI
memberships. No revenue has been earned by the EFERNESRAMBEE ZEENE
resort development segment which is still under Az - REERHEZBFEER
development. The property investment segment LEBREREMERE - £E 53
includes mainly residential and commercial properties EWEAAET o

that are held for capital appreciation or to earn rentals.
The investment holding segment includes holding and
trading of investments and other assets. No operating
segments have been aggregated.
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BE-—T-—=H/ A=1+HLFEZ
S EA R LSBT -

Segment revenue and results for the year ended
30 June 2013 are presented below:

Resort Property Investment
development  investment holding Total
EBRNEZE MERE REER #et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AT TR TR
Turnover g - - - -
Other revenue and income HeEz R A - 6 487 493
- 6 487 493
Results £
Segment results DIEE 5,156 7,678 (652) 12,182
Unallocated corporate income AABAFTHA 3
Unallocated corporate expenses A AR FIE A (20,863)
Finance costs AMERAK (6,668)
Interest income on promissory PRI — R R
note receivable from NEFEALEE
a jointly controlled entity ZFIBHA 11,926 11,926
Loss before tax BRI EE (3.420)
Taxation IR 1,146
Loss for the year FEESE (2.274)
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—=FRNA=THILFE

Segment assets and liabilities as of 30 June 2013 and

other segment information for the year ended 30 June

2013 are presented below:

Assets BE
Liabilities B
Other segment information: ~ Eft 2 E&# -
Additions to property, nE - BER
plant and equipment BrAi]
Additions to investment RAWSR e
properties
Increase in fair value of RENZATE
investment properties #m
Depreciation of property, ~ #1% » B
plant and equipment ki@ e
Gain on disposal of LERATE
financial assets Bl ABR
at fair value LIBEE
Release of prepaid RRENRE
lease payments A

RZBE-—=FRA=THZIHEE
REBBERBE_T-—=FA=1H

I FEZ B D EME LTI T -

Resort Property  Investment Segment

development  investment holding total  Unallocated Total
ERNERE NERE REZR  oR& Ei) a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR ThRL ThR ThRL ThRL ThR
271,432 258,715 2,641 538,788 48,485 587,273
5070 16,755 1,593 23418 143,899 167,317
- 348 263 611 - 611
1,806 - - 1,806 - 1,806
6,794 11,309 - 18,103 - 18,103
- 239 9 330 885 1,215
- - 468 468 - 468
- 40 - 40 - 40
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R MR

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

BE_T——FRA=THLFEZ

Segment revenue and results for the year ended

30 June 2012 are presented below:

DHMAREETIBIT

Resort Property Investment
development investment holding Total
B iR MERE RERR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T T
Turnover £ - 3,296 - 3,296
Other revenue and income HpzmRIBA - 2 471 473
- 3,298 471 3,769
Results ES
Segment results G E (29,346) 9,949 (5,140) (24,537)
Unallocated corporate income AABAFTHA 792
Unallocated corporate expenses &2 Fi A7 (19,991)
Finance costs BERAK (6,310)
Interest income on promissory FEI— R R
note receivable from NS
a jointly controlled entity pAISEON 10,931 10,931
Loss before tax BT AT E R (39,115)
Taxation A (5,768)
Loss for the year FEESE (44,883)
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Segment assets and liabilities as of 30 June 2012 and
other segment information for the year ended 30 June
2012 are presented below:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M EE

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

RZBE-—ZFRA=THZOHMEE
rBBERBE_T——FRA=1H
IFFEZHMDRERINRAT

Resort Property Investment Segment
development  investment holding total  Unallocated Total
ERMERE NERE REER DEvEE ROE ECE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR ThEr ThEn ThEL ThEL
Assets BE 257,930 251,169 2,515 511,614 31,588 543,202
Liabilities aff 2,702 7,426 674 10,802 117,867 128,669
Other segment information: ~ A3 FF&# -
Assets classified as Y]
held for sale HhEgE - 16,778 - 16,778 - 16,778
Liabilities associated with 2484
assets classified as FNEAE
held for sale ZBAE - 1,928 - 1,928 - 1928
Additions to property, nE - BER
plant and equipment Bk - - 1 1 4,265 4,266
Additions to investment REME
properties 1,789 - - 1,789 - 1,789
(Decrease) Increase YT
in fair value of (A2 Em
investment properties (28,489) 8,378 - (20,111) - (20,111)
Depreciation of property, 1% ~ FiE
plant and equipment Rk mE - 288 115 403 369 7
Impairment loss on trade & 5 R E-EW
and other receivables JEREER 240 - 313 553 - 553
Release of prepaid FREAHE
lease payments 4 - 40 - 40 - 40

There was no revenue generated from inter-segment
transactions for both years. Revenue from the property
investment segment reported above represents rental
income earned from external customers. Segment
results represent profit or loss attributable to each
segment without allocation of central administration
costs, share of the results of a jointly controlled entity,
finance costs and income tax expense. Segment
assets and liabilities represent all assets and liabilities
of reportable segments and unallocated corporate
assets and liabilities other than those that have been
eliminated in consolidation.

RAFER FFERRB WA B DB
RBAEL - il ERE D ERA
ZHmETIRRIRAINER 2 HE W
Ao DEPFERREER D ERD #
TRITREERER - EE—REARE
HlARERE  BEKARAEHR
HZ a8 - DEEENRBBERKR
BENWLMBEERABERARDE
TREERAE  BRIFNEAKRTE
HiH e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are principally located in Hong
Kong, the People’s Republic of China other than Hong
Kong (the “PRC"), the BVI and the Panama.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue from external customers by geographical

market:
Hong Kong HAE
PRC H

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of
non-current assets by geographical area in which the
assets are located:

Hong Kong BB
Panama BEef
PRC =

HERER
AEBZEEMWREBMRES
REARAME ((HE] TBEE
) RBRAEEREES -

AT SRR IR R M58 D AR E
RSN B W et 2 DA

Turnover by
geographical market

REHHE D 2 EXEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
- 2,925
- 371
- 3,296

REEMEMREID ZIFRBDEER
EEZDTOT

Carrying amounts of
non-current assets

FRBEEREE
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
236,876 235,333
115,500 106,900
29,225 2,397
381,601 344,630
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Non-current assets presented above exclude financial
instruments. The Group does not have deferred tax
assets, post-employment benefit assets and rights
arising under insurance contracts.

Information about major customers

Revenue from external customers contributing over
10% of the turnover from the Group’s property
investment segment is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M EE

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

L ERBEEL T REMHTA -
REEL G EEEHIEEE - BB
BB A R R A R 2 MR

TEEERER

MERBED B WBIEARNREERER
10% 2 EBRE R MmN T

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT T
Customer A B % R N/ATEH 2,925
Customer B R N/A RiE A 371
FINANCE COSTS 8. MMERK
Group
REME
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FH&TT
Interest on convertible bonds (note 38) FIHAARZ4E 2 F 5 (Bi5E38) 5,278 4,930
Interest expenses on bank borrowings  $R1TE 2 F 8
— wholly repayable — BHEE
Within five years RAFA 31 -
More than five years ZHRAF 1,282 1,327
Finance charges on obligation under B & KFAIEHNEYE & H
a finance lease 77 53
6,668 6,310

The analysis shows the interest expenses on bank
borrowings, which contain a repayment on demand
clause, in accordance with the agreed scheduled
repayment dates as set out in the loan agreements.
The interest expenses on bank borrowings which
contain a repayment on demand clause amounted to
HK$1,313,000 (2012: HK$1,327,000).

DITBRERENE R IHET L E W
HERBHNRITEERN S
PEIEIR BRI B 26K - RITHE
B2 B BERERFERZIER
BB X A1,313,0008 T (= F
——4F 1 1,327,00087T) °
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Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. KRBABE
Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging: MRITATE R B THI%IE -
Group
r5E
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Staff costs, including BIMA G
directors’ emoluments EEMe
Salaries and other benefits e REMET] 12,952 7,681
Retirement benefit scheme ROREFFBIMR
contributions 100 84
Total staff costs BETHA 13,052 7,765
Other operating expenses Hit& B
Compensation payable on termination BIFHE—REME
of sale and purchase agreement for BEBGEMN 2 EEE
disposal of an investment property (M$3E25)
(note 25) 2,066 -
Impairment loss of trade B 5 KA M FEYRIE
and other receivables REBE - 553
Loss on disposal of financial assets HERRFER LT ABR
at fair value through profit or loss ZHBEEBE - 3,499
Loss on disposal of investment properties  HEREME 2B - 225
2,066 4,277
Other items Hitig
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE & 520 500
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BB REENITE
equipment 1,215 772
Direct operating expenses relating to BHEAHSWEL
investment properties that generated BEVENEREES L
rental income - 877
Direct operating expenses relating to BERSIBELRSWEY
investment properties that did not REMENEREES T
generate rental income 2,317 391
Net decrease in fair values of financial BATEZ T ABRZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss ~ BIT§EE 2 A FEFRL - 872
Operating lease payments on premises BFOLEROXH 1,684 2,432
Release of prepaid lease payments BRIERTHEENE 40 40
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e IR R M EE

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

10. TAXATION 10. HIE

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the HE-_Z—=Kk-_FT—Z—<H
Group did not have any assessable profits arising from =THIEFE  BRARNEEET[ S
Hong Kong for the years ended 30 June 2013 and BEEMEENERTAE - Alt2E
2012. BBNGH A -

Taxation arising in the PRC and overseas jurisdictions, e B KO8 ol AR I E A IR IR -
if applicable, are calculated at the rates prevailing in miEE - BREBERDERFENRITE
the relevant jurisdictions based on existing legislation, Bl REREBOTETE -

interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

The tax (credit) charge comprises: I (e ) BRBE
Group
REH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Current tax B ]
Overseas tax NI - 541
Deferred taxation EAEFE
Origination and reversal of B E R A E A R E
temporary differences (1,146) 5,227
Total tax (credit) charge for the year REERIE (KE) BRERE (1,146) 5,768
Taxation recognised directly in other comprehensive HIEE RN A ML E Wz %
income
Group
REH
2013 2012
—E—-=fF —E——F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT

Origination and reversal of deferred B EE Rz mEES

tax relating to revaluation surplus RENFELEH
upon transfer of property, plantand ~ E{hZE 2 EILFE
equipment to investment properties  ERFIEE A ELE KD - (119)
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Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

11.

Reconciliation of taxation

Loss before tax

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate
of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
in determining taxable profit

Tax effect of income not taxable
in determining taxable profit

Differences in tax rates of
other jurisdictions

Unrecognised tax losses

Unrecognised deductible
temporary difference

(Reversal) Recognition of taxable
temporary differences

Others

Tax (credit) expenses for the year

BRI AT &S 1R

BEBFBHHRE16.5%

HIE 2 HE S HT
Group
HEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
(3,420) (39,115)

FEETE FE SR MBS T AT A0

P Z MR &

T PR By AR JRAR T

WAZ ISR 2
RAERDEREATRE

ZER
RIERTIEER

RER ARG EER

(B MR RERRTH
ERMER
HAth

AEEBE (ER) i

ZE—ZF 165%) T E (564) (6,454)

4,364 4,789

(3.838) (2,688)

- (1,198)

1,159 1,259

(1,121) 4,719

(1,146) 5,359

- (18)

(1,146) 5,768
AATEEREARGFE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE 11.
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY

The consolidated loss for the year attributable to

equity holders of the Company includes a profit of
HK$1,224,000 (2012: loss of HK$28,695,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year

and up to the date of these consolidated financial

statements (2072: HK$Nil).

WEEE

FEMERA AR A= B AR FELR
AEEBECEALRZHMBEHRET
R 2 M A1,224000%8 T (= F
— T4 : 1B 52869500087 ) °

RAFERBEENFEMBRERZA
HRE N RKEERE (ZF——F -
) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M EE

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

12. EEREEMS

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=@M2
For the year ended 30 June 2013, the Hz—T=—=#XA=+H
emoluments paid or payable to each of the HEE BRtuESsS (—oF
seven (2012: six) directors were as follows: ——FANT) YRSE XA
ZHEmT :
Hung Kai ~ Hung Kin Lam Ka
Mau, Sang,  NgKit LunTsan Wai, Chan
Marcus  Raymond Ling Kau SuRulia ~ Graham  MingFai Lo Yun Tai Total
HER OBBE RER RER Bif  NFE  REE  EER ag
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Ter TEr  TEr  TAr  TEr  TEr  TEr TEr TEn
(Note 1) (Note2)  (Note2) (Note3)  (Noted)  (Noted)
(1) (BE2)  (Wsk2) (WsE3)  (Wsra)  (WfsE4)
Yearended 30 June 2013~ BE-%-Z
AAZTHLEE
Fees i - - - B 150 -0 150 600
Other emoluments At B
Salaries and oher beneffts %2 RAH7E 491 43 1150 - - - - - 10550
Retirement benefit RIVERIETEIER
scheme contributions 15 - 14 - - - - - 29
Total emoluments fame 4962 4453 1164 150 150 - 150 150 11,179
Year ended 30 June 2012 3
AAZTRLEER
Fees i - - -1 s 1 8 8 6
Other emoluments HtbBie -
Salaries and other benefits %ﬁ@;@ﬁ%ﬂ 46% - - - - - - - 46%
Retirement benefit RIVERIEEIR
scheme contributions 12 - - - - - - - 12
Total emoluments ehe 4708 - - 150 150 175 83 8 539

Note 1:

Note 2:

During the year ended 30 June 2013, in
addition to the above, the Group provided
rent-free accommodation with estimated
rateable values of approximately HK$170,000
(2012: HK$170,000) to Hung Kai Mau,
Marcus (“Mr. Marcus Hung").

On 15 August 2012, Hung Kin Sang,
Raymond (“Mr. Raymond Hung") was re-
appointed as an executive director and the
managing director of the Company. On the
same date, Ms. Ng Kit Ling was appointed as
an executive director of the Company.

M1 REBE -2 —=F<A
=+REFE BRElx
O REE BB E
(Mftfgmn s |) Rt e B
FEZEREMEEN S
170,000 7L (= F — =
4F 1 170,000 ) °

Mz - -—FE—-——F ) \A+H
HoostiEasts (DL
£k ) BEREZERAAT
HITEEREFEKE -
REE REXZLTES
ERARFNTES -
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Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

(b)

Note 3: On 12 December 2011, Lam Ka Wai, Graham
resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company.

Note 4: On 13 December 2011, Chan Ming Fai and Lo
Yun Tai were appointed as independent non-
executive directors of the Company.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included three
(2012: one) directors of the Company, details
of whose emoluments are set out above. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2012: four)
individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits e R EMmET
Retirement benefits scheme IRIKBFET IR
contributions

The two (2072: four) highest paid individuals’
remuneration falls within the following band:

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z£% 1,000,000 7T

(b)

i3 R=B——F+=A+=
A HEBEERHEAD
AZBIIFTES -

Mg - R -E——F+-A+=
H - REAEREBE®STE
ERERARNRR ZBUIE
HITESE -

EEME

AT ALTRE=SR (=
F——F . —F)EE A
SHBHER EX - =4
(ZF—=F : mF) N 2B
ST

Group

AEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
606 1,520
28 49
634 1,569

—H(ZE——FgE) &
SFHALTZHEB T EE :

Number of employees

EEHE
2013 2012
—E—=F -4
2 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

During the years ended 30 June 2013 and 2012,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals, including directors,
as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.
During the years ended 30 June 2013 and
2012, no directors waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments.

REE_ZT—=FR=-F—=
FRA=ZTHLEFE  K&EH
TERAAERETALT (B
BF) ZTEABRBEAMEA
TEBZES  RMARE
(5] 5 VE A R BN ol S (T B B vl 1R
L REE-_ZT—Z=FK_-_F
——FXAZTHLEFE &
XMW EBEWREMHE -

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BREE
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable HEARNFERFA ARGEERER
to the equity holders of the Company is based on the EEOT

following data:

2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHETT
Loss for the purposes of STEERREREE
basic loss per share PR A < E18 2,274 44,883
2013 2012
-F—= —T——4F
No. of shares No. of shares
BRAEE AR{nERE
Weighted average number of FTEEREKREE
ordinary shares for the purposes FrER A 2 I35
of basic loss per share eghar 4= 837,773,826 837,903,401
For the years ended 30 June 2013 and 2012, diluted HE_Z—=FNMN_F—-—Z_FXH
loss per share is the same as basic loss per share as the =TRIEFE - BRESEEEGR
potential ordinary shares issuable under the convertible AEXBEE—HHN - AAREIRRK
bonds have anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per FRETNEE T ARESREARE
share. BEREENE -
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Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Fair value
At 1 July 2011
Additions — subsequent expenditure
Disposal
Net decrease in fair values
Transfer to assets classified as
held for sale (note 25)

At 30 June 2012
Additions — subsequent expenditure
Transfer from assets classified as
held for sale (note 25)
Net increase in fair values

At 30 June 2013

14. REWHE

Group
rEH
HK$'000
FHTT
AFEE
R-ZZFE——F+tH—H 377,600
g — BESH 1,789
HE (5,600)
N ERAFEE (20,111)
BB ESEAFIEHEEE (MiFE25)
(16,778)
R-_E——&FXA=+H 336,900
g — BB 1,806
HANBARELEEE (HiE25)
16,778
NFEEINFERE 18,103
R-ZB—=FXA=1+H 373,587

The fair values of the investment properties held in
Hong Kong and the investment properties under
development held in Panama have been arrived at on
the basis of valuation as at the end of the reporting
period carried out by BMI Appraisals Limited (“BMI"),
an independent firm of qualified professional valuers
not connected with the Group. BMI is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS”) and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
valuation of similar properties at the relevant locations.
The valuation, which conforms to the HKIS Valuation
Standards on Properties, was conducted on an open
market basis by the comparison approach assuming
sale with the benefit of vacant possession or by making
reference to comparable sale evidences as available in
the relevant market.

AEERBBZIRENEINERS
BRPZREMEZ X HEETIRE
EARSEEY B 2B I EEYEMN
B ANHEFEERAF ([FFFA
B RZBETZEERL - PMFA
BRBEBANEMEE ([FEREME
g ) RE LB REERMIERER
BRI R 2 HELR - MzbETR
BEBAEMBETEZ(EERE
AMEEMEMERE) B AR
R 5EEELL ST A A RBRETX
HEZEMEIRBESRANTS L
AL EEFERMSHRK -
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Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

The fair value of the investment property held in the
PRC at 30 June 2013 was determined by the directors
with reference to recent market price of similar
properties on same location. No valuation has been
performed by independent qualified professional
valuers.

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rental or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The carrying values of investment properties held by the
Group comprise:

TEZREMER_ZT—=F<A
=tHZAFERER2RAHH
SERBLA R — 0B Y R HEE o
BB RBEL A BROGERGE -

FIBEASRBENEESORA 2 MERE
@ MEME S WS HAERE A E A
DNHETEFEND BRI BIRE
YES

AEBHBEZREMFEZHEEER
EEE

2013 2012
-F—-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Held in Hong Kong: REBRHE :

Long-term leases REAMEA 231,000 230,000

Held outside Hong Kong: REBUIMEF A -
Medium-term leases FR EAE 49 27,087 -
Freehold KA 115,500 106,900
373,587 336,900
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥  BERRE

Group KEE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold and Motor
buildings improvements equipment vehicles Total
BE B $#E
THRET NELE ET ] HE #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fitn T T T THL
Cost KA
At 1July 2011 RZE——%+A—-H 589 12,570 926 11,353 25,438
Additions i - - 1 4,265 4,266
Disposals e - - (n (2,427) (2,428)
At 30 June 2012 RZE-—%/~A=1H 589 12,570 926 13,191 27,276
Additions b - 407 204 - 611
Write-off i - - - (1,595) (1,595)
At 30 June 2013 RZE-=%XxA=1H 589 12,977 1,130 11,596 26,292
Accumulated depreciation ~ REHERAE
and impairment
At 1 July 2011 RZE——F+fA—H 95 1222 745 10,561 23,623
Provided for the year EFZTE 7 76 105 584 n
Disposals hE - - (1) (2,252) (2,253)
At 30 June 2012 RZE-—F/ A=1H 102 12,298 849 8,893 2,14
Provided for the year EEAE 7 85 76 1,047 1215
Write-off ] - - - (1,595) (1,595)
At 30 June 2013 RZE-Z£XA=+H 109 12,383 925 8,345 21,762
Carrying values REE
At 30 June 2013 RZE-=£XB=1H 480 594 205 3,251 4,530
At 30 June 2012 RZE-—ExA=tH 487 27 77 4298 5,134
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Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

The carrying values of land and buildings held by the
Group comprise:

Held in the PRC under long-term e B AR B 4
land use rights FAESE

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment
of the Group include an aggregate amount of
HK$2,605,000 (2012: HK$3,300,000) in respect of
asset held under a finance lease.

16. OTHER ASSETS

Other assets of the Group and the Company represent
antiques and artworks held for long-term investment
purposes. In the opinion of the directors, the other
assets are worth at least their carrying value at the end
of the reporting period.

17. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY

Share of net assets (5 FEE

16.

17.

AEEFBEZ LMW EEBTRAEAEER
¥

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

480 487

REBZYE BEREEBZER
EREREBRERNBECEER
5 492,6050008 L (= &FE— =% -
3,300,000 ) °

Hitv &=
AEBRAAREMEEBIERIR
ERSHE LS ERBNG - BER
B RBEHKRFRZAMEESD
WERE A EE -

R—BEHEEF QR zERS

Group

FHm
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
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As at 30 June 2013, the Group had interest in the

following jointly controlled entity:

Name of jointly
controlled
entity
HEZEFDF
W&

Quorum Island
(BVI) Limited
("Quorum™)

Form of
business
structures

[GES3T i

Corporation

BRAT

Place of
incorporation/
operation
ML
—E3:uE

British Virgin
Islands

RERUEE

The summarised financial information in respect of

the Group’s interest in a jointly controlled entity which

is accounted for using the equity method is set out

below:

Non-current assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Income

Expenses

FREEE

MBEE

RBAE

YA

i

The financial information of a jointly controlled entity is

prepared using the same accounting policies as those
adopted by the Group.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R MR

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

R-E—=FR A=

TH  AEER

IO AEES A B A s

Proportion of
issued share
Class of capital held

shares held by the Group

BERE HEBRE

W] B =LA

%

Atk

Ordinary 50
EiB

BRAEER—HH
A

Principal
activities

FTEEK

Resort and
property
development

E R &
MEER

RIEHI 2 A EZ

RREREREAREEENGER
mF

2013 2012

—E—-=fF —E——4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHT

83,390 83,247

312 378

(83,702) (83,625)

798 684

(727) (507)

HEZEH AR FARAN S HER AR
SEFTERAN S RREE 2 -
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The unrecognised share of profit of a jointly controlled
entity for the current year amounted to HK$71,000
(2012: HK$177,000) and the related share of losses
cumulatively up to the end of the reporting period
amounted to HK$12,709,000 (2012: HK$12,780,000).

Interlsle Holdings Limited (“Interlsle”), the joint
venture partner, failed to meet its obligation to pay
the outstanding consideration of US$10.5 million
(the “Outstanding Consideration”) in relation to its
subscription of the 50% equity interest in Quorum,
which led to the failure of Quorum to deliver its
payment of the promissory note of US$22 million to
the Group on the due date of 9 April 2011. Upon
advice from the lawyer of the Group, even though the
joint venture agreement provides that the above failure
would lead to a reduction in Interlsle’s shareholding
in Quorum, control does not shift to the Group until
certain actions are taken by Interlsle to enable the
control of Quorum being taken over by the Group.
Since the Group has not obtained control over Quorum
at the end of the reporting period, the directors
consider Quorum should remain as a jointly controlled
entity of the Group.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, which was
effective from 1 July 2013, the Group has changed its
accounting policy with respect to determining whether
it has control over an investee. Management assessed
that the adoption of HKFRS 10 does not change any of
the control conclusions reached by the Group in respect
of its involvement with Interlsle.

At 30 June 2013, included in the statement of financial
position of Quorum was a piece of land, which has
been classified as property, plant and equipment
at a carrying amount of HK$166,780,000 (2012:
HK$166,495,000), of which HK$83,390,000 (20172:
HK$83,247,000) relates to the Group's interest. The fair
value of the land as at 30 June 2013 was approximately
HK$180,000,000 (2012: HK$179,000,000), which has
been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
on that date by an independent professional valuer.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M EE

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

NEE—EHRIESRQ T2 RIERE
5% R B A71,0008L (ZF—=
F 1 177,000/87T) RBFTEBIBERR
HHIR A12,709,0008 7T (ZF—=
£ 1 12,780,000, )

Interlsle Holdings Limited ([ Interisle |) -
REEHEHEBRHBITERYK A
8 ¥ 1A 3208 T Quorum HY 50% A% 4 2
8 32 L {8 10,500,000 % 7T ([ K (&
ERED - BB Quorum T 8E IR R
—E——FNANARSZALERE
22,000,000 7T © RIFEAEE A2
R BEAEWMETEH  LilkE
11% %52 B ¥ nterlsle 5 2> #£ Quorum
BiRE AR AEREAE
E - HEZ Interlsle BREVE T1TEIEANE
[ # & Quorum Z I 7 - BN ER
= HIR AN & E 378 B BS Quorum 2
HIRE - EE R B Quorum B 4B
ERAEE  HEZEFHIAA] -

HRRAR —E—=Ft A —B4&EX
MEBMERELANE 105 - AEH
ENEBHESTERR  EEEE N
BREBMABEHIE - ERENER
BB REERE 107 TS LE
RE B ¥ Interlsle Z 1% Hil#E 2 455

E-_ZE—Z=Z%#~AZ+H &
Quorum M B AR A ZX B E i (5
HAME WMELHZE) AREE
166,780,000/ 7T ( = & — = 4 -
166,495,000 ) + HH 83,390,000
B IT (= F — — 4F : 83,247,000
) REAEBENER R_T—=
FRAZ+H £HOAFELE
180,000,000/ 7T ( = & — = 4 :
179,000,00085C) - B H 21
ERMPAEZ B A E AR -
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Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18.
Current portion mENE S
Non-current portion BN ER S

Prepaid lease payments of the Group represent cost
paid for long-term lease land use rights in the PRC. The
cost is amortised over the leasehold period.

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19.

Equity investments at fair value BRATEFE 2 ERIRE
listed in Hong Kong REBEB LM

The fair values of the listed investments are determined
on the basis of quoted market price at the end of the
reporting period.

Applied Development Holdings Limited EhZ%¥EBAR 2R Annual Report 2013 F4

BENEERE
Group
TEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
40 40
1,511 1,551
1,551 1,591

AEBEBNHEEFRAERREIARS
ERARALERENHEERS -
AN YNGR 5

AHEERE
Group
FHm
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
278 220
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M EE

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. EAFERTTAERZH
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BEE
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E-=F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Held-for-trading investments AT EERIEEE
at fair value ZIE
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong &S L2 BRAESH - 1,033
The fair values of the listed investments are determined TR ENRFERERERKROT
on the basis of quoted market price at the end of the BMEMETE °
reporting period.
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ESRHMEWRIE
Group Company
rEE NS
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E--F —E-=F —E——F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fisx TR FET TR FET
Trade receivables Y UEN 21@) - - - -
Other receivables HitEWR
Deposits, prepayments &% » R
and other debtors REAEREA 3,859 4,138 1,847 1,996
Legal costs recoverable  AJMREZERER  21() 22,213 19,281 22,213 19,206
Amount due from el —REEE 7
a related party A 21(0) 107 107 - -
26,179 23,526 24,060 21,202
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Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

21(a) TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group allows credit period ranging within 90 days
to its trade customers. There was no trade receivables
as at 30 June 2013 (2012: HK$Nil).

21(b) LEGAL COSTS RECOVERABLE

As the end of the reporting period, management
estimated that the Group and the Company would
be able to recover legal costs from Ms. Wong, a close
family member of Mr. Marcus Hung, a director of the
Company, as a result of the consent judgment of a
High Court case.

The legal costs recoverable include an amount paid
by the Company for Mr. Raymond Hung relating to a
High Court case pursuant to the “Indemnity Clause” as
stated in Clause 168 of the Company’s Bye-Laws. As a
result of the consent judgment of the High Court case,
Mr. Raymond Hung will be reimbursed the related legal
costs on indemnity basis from the plaintiff. As at 30
June 2013, management estimated that the Group and
the Company would be able to recover the legal costs
in full from Mr. Raymond Hung.

21(c) AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED
PARTY

The amount represents amount due from Ms. Wong
which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The maximum amount outstanding of
the Group and the Company during the year were
HK$660,000 (2012: HK$738,000) and HK$313,000
(2012: HK$313,000) respectively. At the end of the
reporting period, provision of HK$553,000 (2012:
HK$553,000) had been made for non-repayment of the
balance.

21(a) B 5 B

AEBRTFTEESEPL ZIEEHE
KRN -M-_E—=FA=+H" I
mESENGR (—FE——4F - f&) o

AR E 2 EEE R

RImEMK  BEREGFTAEE LK
RABEEHERBEEREENRE
FIORER  RERLE (ARARAE
EHEBTEBETIORENKE)
WRELAREM -

ZAW el 2 AR BEAAERARTIR
BAEAR R Z A R4EAIEE 168 {5 ATl
B (B ERR ] BB LI NE
B—aS iRt 8 ERNZS
EXEMRHNRABHRER  HEEE
Je A S AT ) R AR [E] DA SR (8 B 5T
HEMEBEERER - N_Z—=FX
A=1+R BREGFTAEBRAR
AR 2 BB A R AR B AR
=

21(c) FEUR —REEE 5 2 FRIE

L BREWT R HE  EAE
iR RERREKEE - AEER
AARRFARNZEAEESEN A
660,000/ (—ZF—= : 73800047 )
313,000 70 (= F— =4 : 313,000
JBETT) o IRERE BAR - 5£553,00078 7T
(—F——4F : 553000/87C) BAREE
BRRE B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

22. PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLE

FROM A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY

Non-current portion JERBIED D
Following the expiration of the due date of the
promissory note receivable from a jointly controlled
entity on 9 April 2011, management of the Group
considered that there was objective evidence that an
impairment loss on the promissory note had incurred.
Management expected that the full amount of the
promissory note would be realisable in approximately
four years after 30 June 2011. Consequently,
impairment loss of HK$50,143,000 measured as the
difference between the carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at 9% per annum was recognised in profit or loss in the
reporting period ended 30 June 2011.

As the end of the reporting period, there was a
reduction of HK$11,926,000 (20712: HK$10,931,000)
in impairment loss, which is attributable to cash flow
discounting. The reduction in impairment has been
recognised as an interest income in profit or loss using
9% per annum, the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows in previous year.

The amount is unsecured. At the end of the reporting
period, the promissory note was past due more than
one year (2012: more than one year). The Group had
brought a legal action against Quorum on 18 December
2012 to recover the promissory note receivable.

22.

R —EHEESIQRERL
e

Group

F8m
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHER FHET
144,314 132,388

R e U — R FE R A RIFH iR 2
RER=ZZE——FWHANBZEEH -
TEBEEERAERBERRARE
BEREREEL BEERE 2
HEBENBEER T ——F <A
=+ BB AEFEER Bl R
—E——EXAZT+HREHHE
A9% EFERBBEERRBR=E
MIREEEAE =2 BEEBX
50,143,000 & LET ABas o

RBEER - ARERBASRE © 5
BUR BB KR A 11,926,000 7T (=
FE— 410,931,000 ) ° HZEHE
B BB R AFEFE 9% (AR A
AFEMBRRKRSRENFNE)
BRI\ eRECE=TERAT
BUA o

ZREBER - RMEHKR - &
HEBBBHEN—F (ZF—=4F
ZR—F) o AEB KR EZEKFN,
ZE ER-_E-——F+-A+NH
A Quorum {EHERERFA ©
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Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

23.

24,

25.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITY

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
repayment term. At the end of the reporting period,
no provision had been made for non-repayment of the
amount due and the carrying amount of the amount
due approximates its fair value.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise bank balances and
cash held by the Group and the Company that bear
interest at prevailing market interest rates.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE

BEME

Investment property

Liabilities associated with assets
classified as held for sale ZIEAE
During the year ended 30 June 2012, a subsidiary of the
Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
a third party (the “Purchaser”) for the disposal of the
investment property (the “Disposal”) in the PRC, at a
consideration, net of land premium, of HK$16,778,000.
Deposits of HK$1,928,000 were received as at 30 June
2012. The fair value of the investment property stated
in the statement of financial position at 30 June 2012
was arrived at by reference to the consideration of the

Disposal.

23.

24,

25.

DERFHENEE

FEUR — B A RHE S D B 25K
15

EHET AR - B RmEEER
o RIEHK REHREEZR
BEH A MARERAERLT
HAYE -

RITEERES
BIAIEERESEEAEEARAAT
BEMSRTISHE Y RITEER
Be o

DPERTHENEE
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
- 16,778
- 1,928
EBE-T-—FEAAZTALEE

N AEEN—BRNBAREE=H
(TEF D) T EEHHBEERER
wEME ([HE]) - RE (F0BkRFH
&) 516,778,000/ L - R=—ZT——
FRA=THE % F1,928,000% 7T
e  WEVENATFER=ZZ—=
FARA= T BRI BN K FTF) Th4E
DEHEFHEIRE -
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As a result of the failure to agree on the additional
tax payable calculated based on the property value
assessed by the PRC tax bureau, the Purchaser filed
an application to the court for an order that the
Disposal be completed and the payment of additional
tax be borne by the Group. The Group had filed a
counterclaim against the Purchaser for non-payment of
the additional tax and the unconditional cancellation
of the Disposal. As advised by the lawyer of the Group,
with the additional tax being imposed, the Disposal
would violate the Fairness Act under the PRC Contract
Law. Therefore, the directors consider that the Disposal
should be terminated. Accordingly, the criteria in
HKFRS 5 could no longer be satisfied because of the
unlikelihood of the investment property being disposed
of in the near future. The investment property and the
liabilities associated therewith ceased to be classified as
assets held for sale and are transferred to investment
properties and other payables as set out in notes 14
and 26 to these consolidated financial statements
respectively.

The estimated compensation payable upon successful
termination of the sale and purchase agreement of
the Disposal amounted to HK$2,066,000 has been
included in the “other operating expenses” line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

If the Group is forced to complete the Disposal, the
total expected potential loss on Disposal may amount
to approximately HK$11 million. Based on the above-
mentioned legal advice, no provision has therefore
been made in respect of this potential loss.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M EE

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

RRREEZKR BRI K (B E
MBE A LN EEEFENER
HER) - B REBTRL A RE - B
SEERHE RAE N RRIMIIE
AEEERERF  METHRIX
RSN TR B IEHBUR L E » 7
AEBENRMEZRT - ERBUERIN
MR HEFERFEERETZ
REE - At BEFERBHERZK
Ik e AREMEET AN RIAT]
EEHE  REBEBMBHREERFESR
MR%E - B TEEER - REMENR
87 AN B ETBR Y BARED
EEESBEBIREYE R AMEN
IR - W BB RS I MR T
14} 26 °

RITEBEHR 2 TER  [HATRESR
%6 4 2,066,00008 70 0 WHELARAEEE
WamRASA [ HAn @RS | BB -

2N 52 B 4o il M SEAC R - TEER
BB BB R AT 8E:EF)49 11,000,000
BT ER LIUERER - BbEE
Ve B BB I8 I -
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Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

26. OTHER PAYABLES 26. HAFEFIR
Group Company
rEH AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—g—= —E-——_F =ZB-=F —T—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T FBR FiET
Accrued charges and JERI AR I
other creditors HiEBA 9,056 3,644 1,447 523
Deposits received on BRHERS
the Disposal (note 25) (5% 25) 10,329 - - -
19,385 3,644 1,447 523
27. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 27. EBEMRITEE
Group
AEHE
2013 2012
—E-=fF —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FiET
Current portion of bank borrowings B D HRITEE 9,443 3,444
Non-current portion of bank MBI IRITIEE
borrowings which contains ERBE TREXE
a repayment on demand clause BRI 68,868 72,314
78,311 75,758
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Analysis of the amounts due based on scheduled
payment dates set out in the loan agreements (ignoring
the effect of any repayment on demand clause) is as

follows:

Within one year —FR
One to five years —ERF
Over five years AFEUE

On demand or within one year

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s bank
borrowings carried variable interest rates ranging from
1.45% to 2.30% per annum above one month Hong
Kong Inter-bank Offer Rate (20712: 1.45% per annum
above one month Hong Kong Inter-bank Offer Rate).
The effective interest rate during the year was 1.85%
(2012: 1.75%) per annum. The bank borrowings are
secured by the assets of the Group as set out in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.

The secured bank borrowings with a clause in its
terms that gives the bank a customary overriding right
of repayment on demand and an unfettered right
of terminating the facility at any time by notice in
writing to the Group at its sole discretion are classified
as current liabilities even though the directors do
not expect that the bank would exercise its rights to
demand repayment.

BEREH—FNA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M EE

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

BB R RE N B R A h At B
KB (208 (o] 12 22 SR 3R SR 16
RZFHE) AT

Group

REME
2013 2012
—_EgE—= —E——fF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHER THET
9,443 3,444
14,403 14,397
54,465 57,917
78,311 75,758

REEBR - AEENRITEEIRZ
BEBRITRAEFRBEMFFE1.45%
B230% (=F— =4 ZEFRTAE
HEIRENFFEI145%) - KEER
BERIEEFREE1.85%(=F—=
F :1.75%) - BREARITIEEMENH
REBEE BHRGAE VB REM
5E36°

BEEMARITEERBRIEZ HRX
AR TRITERERLEZE N
R RAEEMREASEBAREE
PEORNE I RIEHERN - BE
FU T BHZRITHITEEERNERK
EF O TEITRERRARBAS -
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Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

28. OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE 28. REMHAEARE
LEASE
Group
rE&EH
2013 2012
—E-=F T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Current portion mehEh s 1,162 1,124
Non-current portion IERENER D 595 1,757
1,757 2,881
Group
AEH
Minimum lease Present value of
payments minimum lease payments
RERNTR REHENTHREE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E—-—F —E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TERT FET FHERT FET
Amounts payable: JERTRE
Within one year —FR 1,201 1,201 1,162 1,124
More than one year but HiR—F
less than two years BORME 601 1,201 595 1,162
More than two years but BB
less than three years BAR=EF - 601 - 595
1,802 3,003 1,757 2,881
Less: Future finance charges i : 15 7KBE & (45) (122) - -
Present value of finance MHEEE 2 RE
lease obligation 1,757 2,881 1,757 2,881
Less : Amount due for B RtTZEAR
settlement within pd ANENE
12 months (1,162) (1,124)
Amount due for settlement  +—{@F1%
after 12 months ZIERTFRIE 595 1,757
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M EE

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

29.

The obligation under a finance lease of the Group is
secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased asset
as set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The lease term is three years and on a fixed repayment
basis. For the year ended 30 June 2013, the average
effective borrowing rate was 3.26% (2012: 3.26%) per
annum. Interest rate was fixed at the contract date. All
lease is on a fixed repayment basis.

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each & BRFRE(E0.01# 7T

Authorised: JETE ¢
At 1July 2011, 30 June 2012 RZZT——%tHA—H"
and 30 June 2013 “E-——FA=+H

EZZE—=FXA=1H

Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At 1 July 2011 RZE——%+H—H
Cancellation upon repurchase A Bl 5 1 = 88 2 B 19

of own shares

At 30 June 2012 and
30 June 2013

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Company
repurchased on the Stock Exchange a total of 535,000
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company at an
aggregate consideration of HK$60,000, all of which
were cancelled during the year ended 30 June 2012.
The nominal value of cancelled shares was credited
to the capital redemption reserve and the aggregate
consideration was charged to the retained profits of the
Company.

There was no repurchase on the Stock Exchange during
the year ended 30 June 2013.

RZE——F A A=+HK
—ZE-=%xA=+AH

29.

AEEREARERECHAEEEE
HR - YRR S M ERRMEE 5 -

HEHA=FNMEEERR -HE—
E-=FRNA=+THLEE FHE
BREENXRREF326%(—F——
F:326%) VRETEROEH -
A ERABIEE R RER -

R

Number of
ordinary shares HK$'000
EEREE FAT
6,000,000,000 60,000
838,308,826 8,383
(535,000) )
837,773,826 8,378
REBEE-_E——FA=+RHIL%E
B AAFTHBERSMEDEFER

0.017% 70,2 535,0000% + H#AKREA
60,0008 7T * ZERNER T —=
FRAZTHLEFERNGH - &
ROBEELZHREFZEABEEFE
RE REARERLARRARRE
A e

REBE-_ZT-—=F A=1THILFE
A WEERZABEARLD o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R MR

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

30.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 16
September 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”). The 2002
Scheme was expired on 16 September 2012. Pursuant
to an ordinary resolution passed at the Annual General
Meeting held on 15 November 2012, a new share
option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”) was adopted.
Under the 2012 Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may, at their discretion, grant options to any
employees, including executive directors, or consultants
of the Company and/or its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares in the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2012 Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at the date of adoption of the Scheme (“Scheme
Mandate Limit”) which was 83,777,383 shares. Unless
approved by the shareholders of the Company, the
number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual is not permitted to exceed
the higher of 1% of the number of shares issued and
issuable under the 2012 Scheme or any other limit as
may be permitted under the Listing Rules.

Any grant of options under the 2012 Scheme to a
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company or any of their respective associates must
be approved by independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director
who is the grantee of the options). Any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company or to any of
their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares in issue and with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, in any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting
of the Company.

30.

URARER TR
RZFETE_FAA+TRAE > XRA
KRB ESS (R —FT_F5t
gl  Z-TT_FiHER=T—=
FAATABERHS - RIE-FT——F
T—ATRARTHERBEFARE L
B —AERRESR - KA BEK
T8l (% [ZT—Z—F&r8l)) - IRIR
Z_FE—_F5tE ARREEEA
BERARE R, REMHERF 2 E
8 (BRATESR) JBERAR L AIRE
RRABBAD 2 FEARHE -

BREZ T —ZFr 8B 2 B
s Rz BRin g - TEBBRMNZ
FFEEABARRIBEITRG Z10%
([FTE=#EBREE J) A83,777,383% °
BRIESE A RIARERHLE - AT T
BERIA L2 BIRER S k2 &K E
B TMSHBREZ-ZT——F5E
EBETRAIETZRNDEE Z21%%K
IRAR T AR B BT & 5 2 A 1) E A PR
(LREERE) -

BEZT—ZFE - LMARFE
- FETBRABREZRERHT
MBEA TR DT MERE  E-S
MERTES (TREEBEEANGAER
EARAZEMBILIENTES) B
TR o WAARREBRERIE L
HFNTEFHRESBEZHMBALE
LR - HERREBARBITR
7 20.1% RN+ @5 B\EREE
#8i5,000,000 77T (ARIREAREN R
R HR D 2 W EBRTE) - BERE
ERERE EHE -
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Options granted must be taken up within 30 days
of the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 by the
grantee on each acceptance of grant. Options may
be exercised at any time from the date of grant to the
10th anniversary of the date of grant. In each grant of
options, the board of directors of the Company may
at their discretion to determine the specific exercise
period. The exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company, and will be the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s share on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant, and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

The directors and employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries are entitled to participate in the 2012
Scheme. At 30 June 2013 and 2012, the total number
of shares available for issue under the 2012 Scheme
and the 2002 Scheme were 83,777,383 shares and
87,321,782 shares respectively, which represented
approximately 10% (20712:10.4%) of the Company’s
issued share capital.

During the years ended 30 June 2013 and 2012, no
share options had been granted. There were no share
options outstanding as at 30 June 2013 and 2012.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M EE

Year ended 30 June 2013 & Z T —=F X A=THILFE

Rz BB AR B BARERT 30
BRER  REBRXEMFESLUETE
ARBEXZBRTHMNIET - BRiE
ATARFEH A REERL AHE 10BF
- EARIRERS 1T » IR D BB ARy
ExgrRBEERETESY - 176
EHRARAERETE  YHEFROE
H AR R B IR 2 B ¢ (i) B
R BHAAEZERAARBRDZ
FHYTHE ¢ i) AR BN 2 EE
(A= ERE) -

RARREMBRARAIZEZRIEES
HRIZEARNR 2 ZT—ZF5rEl -
RZE—=FR_FT—ZFA
=TH BE-ZTE-—ZFiE K
ZEE-FEAHEBITRNEE S
7%83,777,383 1% 2. 87,321,782} -
HRARARFZETRMDA10% (=
FE——4F :104%) °

REE—E—=FR=_F——F,"A
:+E¢¢F'&ﬁﬁﬁ%%%°%

—E-=FR-FT-—FRA=T
'&ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ%%%%°
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31.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The movement for the year in the Group’s net deferred
tax liabilities is as follows:

TEARTRE B3 9)
(Credit) Charge to profit or loss (5t A) M8z
Credit to other comprehensive income FHIEIK 2T A
Hib2mEkER

At beginning of the reporting period

At the end of the reporting period fER&EHIK

Recognised deferred tax liabilities at the end of the
reporting period represent the following:

DNREAE ()

Fair value adjustment (Note)

EMEB+ @A
HElE &8

Amount expected to be recovered
after more than 12 months

Note:  The balance as at 30 June 2012 represented deferred
tax on the fair value adjustment arising from assets
classified as held for sale which was represented by an
investment property.

EERTE
PRAE RAREBIRICHEE & FEE
T

Group

FEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
5,359 251
(1.146) 5,227
- (119)
4,213 5,359

RN EHREBRECHIBEEEN
T

Group

AEB
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
4,213 5,359
4,213 -

Mzt : R-Z-——FRXA=1TH  Z&H
REDERFHEEEZREME
FRIEAMELEHR AN FEHE -
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32.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from

Deductible temporary differences A TR ER
Tax losses THsEE
At the end of the reporting period RIREHIK

The deductible temporary differences of
HK$53,563,000 (20712: HK$60,357,000) represent
deficit on revaluation of overseas investment
properties. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had unused tax losses of HK$232,592,000
(2012: HK$225,570,000) available for offset against
future taxable profits. No deferred tax assets in respect
of these items have been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group
entered into a finance lease arrangement in respect of
property, plant and equipment with a total capital value
at the inception of the lease of HK$3,429,000.

The Group did not have major non-cash transaction for
the year ended 30 June 2013.

32.

AREREL T IREERE
Group
EX .
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—_4F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
53,563 60,357
232,592 225,570
286,155 285,927

A i 30 E B 1 = 53,563,000
JT ( = F — —4F : 60,357,000;% 7T )
REEHEINEEMENRT - R
WMERAKR AEBERDABIES
$8232,592,0008 T (= F — =& -
225,570,0007T ) AI{HRHSH AR 2R E R
T2 FE o RA7NA] TR 89 R 2R F
o EEIBEAEHERREBEEES
[E H)EIERITE o B 7% 518 ] IR B 4t
i

FEFRERS
REBEZ-_ZTZ——FA=+HI&F
B AEEGHERGEHEERES

3,429,000 8T 2 W% BB MR
R EHELTHE -

RBE-B—=FXA=THLF
g AEBAREIBFRERS -
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33.

34.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
rented premises which fall due as follows:

Within one year —&R
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFERF
(BiEEEMTE)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its offices and directors’
accommodations. Leases are negotiated for a term of 2
years (2012: ranged from 6 months to 2 years). Rentals
are fixed over the lease period and no arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for future minimum lease
payments, which represent rentals receivable by the
Group under non-cancellable operating leases which
fall due as follows:

Within one year R—FR

33.

34,

KRR
AEBHAEA

RIFEHR  AEBREAEDEZT
Al BB 2 R R&IEM
ST

Group

FEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
3,789 1,063
1,379 -
5,168 1,063

REHEMSEARBRN 2ETH
REREFEERX - -HMSME
(ZF——F: NAAEMF) - BE
KA A R EE W E L AR EE
KELLHE

REHNZH
AEERHBEA

M3 B - o B R 6 T0AR
BTG RN 2 REBS WA
o -

Group

AEE
2013 2012
—_EgE—= —E——fF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHER T

- 343
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35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. BEAREIE
Group
TEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FHT
Capital expenditure in respect of EENERTELE
the acquisition of investment TSR B
properties and property, ZEHBEERENER
plant and equipment contracted M - BERRE2
but not provided for in the BREE
consolidated financial statements
— the Group - NEHE 19,203 19,203
— share of a jointly controlled entity - (S — RS A A 31,288 31,288
50,491 50,491
36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 36. BEEER

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and
the Company had provided the following security for
the banking facilities granted to a subsidiary of the
Company as set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(@) Pledge of investment properties of the Group
with a carrying amount of HK$231,000,000
(2012: HK$230,000,000);

(b) All monies earned by the above pledged
investment properties of the Group. During the
year, there was no rental income generated
from these investment properties (2072:
HK$2,925,000),

(0) Property insurance on the pledged investment
properties executed by the Group in favour of
the bank. At the end of the reporting period,
the property insurance coverage amounted to
HK$16,500,000 (2012: HK$15,840,000); and

(d) Unconditional and irrevocable corporate
guarantee given by the Company in respect of
all amounts owing by the subsidiary to the bank
under the facility.

RBERR - AERELANR B HER
BYFAREN—RHME AR ZRITE
& TN REMBImARMEE27 - T
Rt ZREWT

(a
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37. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
during the year, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties:

(a)

(b)

Transactions

The Group earned rental income of HK$Nil
(2012: approximately HK$2,925,000) from Ms.
Wong, a close family member of the Chairman,
Mr. Marcus Hung, of the Company during the
year ended 30 June 2013.

The Group paid rental expenses of approximately
HK$95,000 (2012: HK$759,000) for accommodation
to Mr. Raymond Hung, a close family member
of the Chairman, Mr. Marcus Hung, of the
Company for the period from 1 July 2012 to 15
August 2012, as a consultant of the Group.

The Group paid consultancy fee of approximately
HK$232,000 (20712: HK$2,010,000) to Mr.
Raymond Hung for the period from 1 July 2012
to 15 August 2012.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the
Company entered into a subscription agreement
with Mr. Raymond Hung, pursuant to which
the Company agreed to issue, and Mr.
Raymond Hung agreed to subscribe for the
convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$31,080,000 in cash. These transactions
constitute connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules and the
relevant disclosures are made in note 38(b) to
these consolidated financial statements.

Remuneration to key management
personnel

The remuneration of members of key
management, other than directors as disclosed
in note 12 to these consolidated financial
statements was as follows:

37. BEATRBERS

BRTEAGEWBERREREZIRS

AR

RAFER - AKEERA

BATAE MRS

(a)

(b)

X5
AEERBE-_ZT—=F-A
“HHUEFEYER TR

BMESWA (ZE——F 4
2,925,0008T ) + RN F
F RSB ERREYNR
FERK 8B ©

REBR -ZE——F+7—
He—_Z——F/\A+HH
B TN EEEEAZY
/95,0008 (ZE—Z4F -
759,000 C) T RE R E
(EAAREBZEM)  EAXR
NREFEREBEEBERLY
MRERKE -

KEBR-_ZT——F+A—H
E-FT——FNA+EHBH
M B ZE4A232,000
BT (ZE— 4 : 2,010,000
JBEIT) TR A -

HE-ZT—=FA=1+H1
FE - ApRaEEESEER
YREE - BRIERERZ
AARREBRITRARESLE
[B 2 AR £ 48%431,080,000/8
LIRS RE R ER - BIF
FHRA - ZRSEKA LT
ZAEX S REBEBERGE
B R M5 38(b) °

TEEBAEME

BT LR A SRR MIEE 12
BEZEEIN RAFAZE
ZERABMEWT
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Salaries and other benefits Fre MEMEF]

Retirement benefit
scheme contributions

The remuneration of directors and other key
management personnel is determined by the
remuneration committee of the Company
having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

The above transactions do not fall under
the definition of connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules.

38. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(a)

2013 CB

On 10 December 2010, the Group issued 8%
convertible bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$41,760,000 (the “2013 CB").
The holders of the 2013 CB may convert the
whole or any part, in minimum amount of
HK$250,000 or integral multiples, of the 2013
CB into shares at conversion price of HK$0.24,
subject to adjustments, with the term of 3 years
from 10 December 2010. The Company has no
intention to exercise its rights to early redeem
the whole or any part of the 2013 CB until the
maturity date even though the Company has
the right at its sole and absolute discretion at
any time after 1 year from 10 December 2010
to redeem the whole or any principal amount,
in minimum amount of HK$250,000 or integral
multiples, of the 2013 CB.

RRBHEEIHS

Group
A5%E
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
354 772
11 12
365 784

ARBZHFHEE SR T
BIALZ KRB RmSBRME
TEFREMEIREEARZ
Bl

BB TER ETRAERE
5 e

38. AHRKREE

(a)
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AN £ [ 3 178% 1] 2 IR E 4E
7 42 & 58 A& 41,760,000 JT
(f2013° Mg T #& 1) © 2013
RBREBEFEA  #ZT—
TE+_A+BEU=ZFAH"
BRI D 0 U
{K £ %8250,000 /8 o3k L 258
EH I R2013 0 % =i
HBMERSR0.247L » Al T
FE o REIEFE Z AT - ANAA)
BEITEHENIREER 2
(AT ER 2013 AIHA R E 1
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(b)

The fair value of the liability component and the
equity conversion component were determined
at issuance of the 2013 CB. The fair value of
the liability component was calculated using
an annual market interest rate of 12.2%. The
residual amount, representing the value of
the equity conversion component, has been
included in the convertible bonds reserve.

2018 CB

On 29 May 2013, the Company issued
convertible bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$31,080,000 (the “2018 CB") to
Mr. Raymond Hung for financing the working
capital requirements of the Group. The 2018 CB
bears no coupon interest and is unsecured. The
holders of the 2018 CB may convert the whole
or part, in minimum amount of HK$500,000 or
integral multiples, of the 2018 CB into shares
at conversion price of HK$0.21, subject to
adjustments, with the term of 5 years from 29
May 2013. The Company has no obligation
to redeem the 2018 CB prior to the maturity
date unless an event of default as provided in
the terms and conditions of the 2018 CB has
occurred prior to the maturity date.

The fair value of the liability component and the
equity conversion component were determined
at issuance of the 2018 CB. The fair value of
the liability component was calculated using
an annual market interest rate of 6.3%. The
residual amount, representing the value of
the equity conversion component, has been
included in the convertible bonds reserve.

(b)

BEHY MEaEniEonn
FELEET2013MHER
BREE - R FEMNRERD
EABFOTEFES12.2%
AE - Rz e BERBER
AR RS - RARBE
BIRE D EE -

2018 AT AR R &

E-ZE—=FFA=-t+hH-
REBEFTARRERESTE
31,080,000 % 7T ([2018 AJ # i
=g ) BB E  fEAK
SEzEEESFE 2018
RREE AT E REEE o
2018 AR BB FEB A - 1
—E-ZFRA-t+HABNKTA
FRE - TSRS R[5
7 DA (K % §8500,000% 7T
Bk H BB B 2018 AT
BEE KBREAER2
BT AT THAE - REEBR Y
Bl - NREDR B EFIER 2018
ARRERE - BRIFETHAZ
ATAR 15 2018 AT 44 I =45 #9 15
R BB E M -

BETS REEERTSHA
FEREHEIT2018A KR E
BEET 2AFEMNEEDS
RUEBFNM SN EE63%
TE - Wz eBEWBRER
ARREEREE  ERRRE
EIRIHHIEE -
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() The above-mentioned convertible bonds (c) MFEER LR EEsT
recognised at the end of the reporting period HTAWNT -

are calculated as follows:

Group and Company

AEBRAEALT
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FAT
Liability component &R
At beginning of the reporting period £ ¥R & H31]] 39,099 37,510
Nominal value of convertible ERTIMRER AE
bonds issued 31,080 -
Issue costs apportioned to liability BIIRADENBENS
component (334) -
Equity component at the issue date RETR RS (8,131) -
At the issue date NEITH 22,615 -
Interest expenses (note 8) FEF% (HFE8) 5,278 4,930
Interest paid/payable St TR T B (3,341) (3,341)
At the end of the reporting period fER&HIR 63,651 39,099
Representing by: & -
Due within 12 months, R+ =18 A REE
current portion MENER S 40,906 -
Due after 12 months, A8 A% 25
non-current portion FEmENE D 22,745 39,099
63,651 39,099
Equity component B
At beginning of the reporting period £k & Hi#]) 3,846 3,846
Convertible bonds issued AR ER LT 8,131 -
Issue costs apportioned to BN #EEELD
equity component (119) -
At the end of the reporting period fER&H#IR 11,858 3,846
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39.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries
Other assets

Current assets
Other receivables
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Other payables

Amount due to a subsidiary
Convertible bonds

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current
liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Share premium and reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

Non-current liabilities
Convertible bonds

FRBEE
LRy NI
Hin & B

REBEE
H At fEM IR
RITHEFNRE

RBRE
HLA 5 50O

FENt — IR B A B 2 3K

ARERRE

FhRBAE

REERRBAE

BAXK

EEEN

BiraERFES

BEAE

FRBEE
ARRRE

39

Note
BfaE

40
16

21
24

26

38

29
39(a)

38

AR B FHARR R

2013 2012
—E-= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER T
400,623 392,591
1,045 1,045
401,668 393,636
24,060 21,202
17,019 2,790
41,079 23,992
1,447 523
218,910 228,503
40,906 -
261,263 229,026
(220,184) (205,034)
181,484 188,602
8,378 8,378
150,361 141,125
158,739 149,503
22,745 39,099
181,484 188,602
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Note: e -
(a) Share premium and reserves €) D EE R FEES
Capital Convertible
Share  redemption Capital bonds Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
TRERER
RIVEE ERBERE EXRE ERG 2EER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL FAL FAL
At 1 July 2011 RZZ——%F
+HA—H 445 11,926 204,610 3,846 (50,952) 169,875
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (28,695) (28,695)
Transaction with ~ EHEHA
equity holders ZR5
Repurchase of Elgi)
own shares - 5 - - (60) (55)
At30June2012  RZT—=F
~A=TH 445 11,931 204,610 3,846 (79,707) 141,125
Profit for the year ~ FE &7 - - - - 1,224 1,224
Transaction with ~ EHEEHA
equity holders ZR5
Issue of convertible ~ B{TAT AR
bonds - - - 8,012 - 8,012
At 30 June 2013 R-ZE-=F
~B=1H 445 11,931 204,610 11,858 (78,483) 150,361

The capital reserve of the Company represents
contributed surplus arising from the cancellation of
share premium account of the Company pursuant
to a special resolution passed by the Company on
22 February 1999. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition
that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend,
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if
there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or
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40.

(ii) the realisable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium account.

Subject to the conditions mentioned in the foregoing
paragraph, the Company had the following reserves
available for distribution to shareholders at the end of
the reporting period:

Capital reserve BARFEE

Accumulated losses RIEEE
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 40.
Unlisted shares, at cost JELEMRRIRG + KA
Amount due from subsidiaries JEUH B A 5] 2 208
Accumulated impairment losses ZETREBE
Amount due to a subsidiary e —FEIFT BB A /) 2 5RIE

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment term. At
the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts
of the amounts due approximate their fair values. The
amounts due from subsidiaries are not expected to be
realised in the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.

(ii) ARABEZAERBEE
HEEDREAERE %
TIRRA BB AE B 2 478

ERFA LBRAIZEET - ARF]
R E IR A 0 IR TR 2 [

R
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
204,610 204,610
(78,483) (79,707)
126,127 124,903
Bt F ==
Company
RATH

2013 2012
—EB-=F —2——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TAET
77,747 77,747
393,766 396,444
471,513 474,191
(70,890) (81,600)
400,623 392,591
218,910 228,503

ZEM FEAS B B A R ARIE R IR
A 2R REETEERY - £HREH
R-EHER N2BEEOIFLT
18 - FEUHTE R RIFRIATRAH LR A
HIE R RIR R+ — A AR TS =R -
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ITEMBRARAN-_ZE—=F1H

[]
—+

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2013

122

are as follows: HZsBIT :
Proportion of
Place of Nominal value of issued share
incorporation or issued and capital/registered
establishment/  paid up share capital/ capital held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
Bl BRRMERE/ KAARBERTRE/
WELTER g% /Gend  AREAEE AMEALA IERH
Directly Indirectly
Bi &
Applied Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 - 100% Investment holding
Bl LER 1,000 REER
Applied Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 - 100% Property, plant and
Properties Limited Bl TR 500,000 equipment holding and
investing in equity
securities
BENE  BERRBR
Applied Investment (Asia) Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$574,630,911 100% - Investment holding and
ENRARRERAA Bl L@k 574,630,911/ investing in equity securities
REZRRETESFRE
AppliedLand Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% - Property, plant and
EelRERERAR 3 L@k equipment holding and
investment holding
BENE  BERRER
RERR
Applied Mission Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100% Property, plant and
&k LB 10,0007 equipment holding
BENE  BERRE
Applied Secretaries Management  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% - Providing administrative
Limited Bl TRR2ET and secretarial services
RETRRHE R
Applied Toys Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property, plant and
36 TER2ET equipment holding
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Proportion of
Place of Nominal value of issued share
incorporation or issued and capital/registered
establishment/  paid up share capital/ capital held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
Bl BRTRBRRE/ FARBECRATRE/
WEARER g% /kens  IMELAEE AMERL B IERH
Directly Indirectly
E# &
Data Pen Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% - Property, plant and
BHETEARRA Bl TER2AT equipment holding
BENE  BERERE
Quorum Electronics (Shenzhen) ~ PRC Registered capital - 100% Property holding
Company Limited (Note) ﬁF HK$10,000,000 BENE
BBRSHREE (RY) BRAF] &7 10,000,000 7
(FitzE)
Playa Grande Development Panama Ordinary US$200 - 100% Resort and property
Holdings Inc. BEN LR 200ETT development
ERNRNFLRE
Playa Grande Hot Panama Ordinary US$200 - 100% Resort and property
Spring Development REN LB 2005 development
Holdings, Inc. BRIRDELR
Severn Villa Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$7,545,000 - 100% Property holding
& ERIR7 545,000 7 RFENE
Note: Quorum Electronics (Shenzhen) Company Limited is 5T . BEZREAGZE OFY) BERAA
a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the REFBKI 22 ENINEHEB T
PRC. E
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities MAFEEFRIARFEZEMER - &
outstanding at the end of the reporting period, or at B AR EM MR EE 2 EFE
any time during the reporting period. % o
The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company FIMB AR AEERAHAEEF
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally EXBELEERBEEXEFE LA
affected the results of the year or assets and liabilities Al BERRA  WEABEMMEA
of the Group. To give details of all other subsidiaries AIZFHIBREREANRIIE

would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.
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41.

42.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has
joined a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees. The MPF
Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions
to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce
the contributions payable in future years.

The retirement benefits cost of the MPF Scheme
charged to profit or loss, as set out in note 9 to
these consolidated financial statements, represents
contributions payable to the fund by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

LITIGATIONS

(@) High Court Miscellaneous
Proceedings No. 243 and 522/2011

During January and February 2011, Ms. Wong,
a former non-executive director of the Company
retired on 14 January 2011, commenced
actions to bring the Company and a subsidiary
of the Company as intervening parties to the
matrimonial proceedings between Ms. Wong
and Mr. Raymond Hung.

41.

42.
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On 7 July 2011, Ms. Wong lodged a statement
of claim to the High Court of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (the
“High Court”) against the Company and
the subsidiary for claiming a declaration that
certain investment properties, which have been
included in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, are actually held by the subsidiary
as a trustee for Ms. Wong and an order for the
taking of accounts or quantification of equitable
compensation amongst certain involved parties
(the "Claims™).

On 5 August 2011, the Company and the
subsidiary filed defence and counterclaims
against Ms. Wong for vacant possession
of those investment properties and unpaid
licence fees for remaining at the investment
properties until the recovery of possession of the
investment properties by the Company and the
subsidiary (the “Counterclaims”).

On 4 May 2012, Ms. Wong conceded on the
Claims against the Group and also on the
Counterclaims against her. Accordingly, the High
Court made the orders and judgement that the
Claims were dismissed with costs payable by
Ms. Wong to the Group on an indemnity basis.
A declaration that the investment properties
belonged to the Group was also granted.
Besides, Ms. Wong was ordered to deliver up
vacant possession of the investment properties
and pay mesne profits for her period of
occupation.

On 11 June 2012, Ms. Wong returned the
possession of the investment properties to the
Group.

The Group is in the process of taking the
appropriate steps to recover the legal costs of
the Group in respect of the Claims and the
Counterclaims from Ms. Wong, which has
been recorded as legal costs recoverable as set
out in note 21 to these consolidated financial
statements.
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43.

(b)

High Court Action No. 424/2011

Ms. Wong originally commenced the claim for
various arrears of salaries and other allowances,
non-executive director’s fee and reimbursements
in respect of the investment properties in the
Labour Tribunal against the Company. After
a preliminary hearing, the Labour Tribunal
transferred the claim to the High Court in
February 2011 for a total sum of the claim of
approximately HK$3.5 million.

On 31 May 2011, Ms. Wong lodged a statement
of claim to the High Court against the Company
for an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$1.5 million and the related interest and
costs (the “Statement of Claims”).

On 21 August 2012, Ms. Wong's lawyer took
out a summons application for leave to amend
the Statement of Claim in which the claim
amount was adjusted to approximately HK$3
million with further interest and related costs to
be charged.

The directors consider that the claim from Ms.
Wong is without merit and have been advised
by the Group's lawyers that the Group holds
strong positions in this claim and therefore
no provision for the claims was considered
necessary.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a

subsidiary of the Company has increased a revolving

loan facility granted by a bank in Hong Kong from
HK$10,000,000 to HK$20,000,000 with the same
terms and conditions under the existing revolving loan

facility granted.

As at the date of these consolidated financial

statements, the additional revolving loan facility had

not been utilised.
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Financial Summary
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RESULTS E

Year ended 30 June
BEAA=THLEE
2009 2010 20M 2012 2013
—TTNF B-TF C—2—%F CT--f CZB-Zf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET FET THET

Turnover L 5,058 4,847 4,649 3,296 -
Profit (Loss) before tax BEATER (B5) (11,810) 51,868 (135,478) (39,115) (3,420)
Tax credit (charge) BEER () - (4,295) 1,993 (5,768) 1,146
Profit (Loss) for the year FERF (FE) (11,810) 47,573 (133,485) (44,883) (2,274)

Attributable to equity holders ~ JE{EZRAF)

of the Company REREA (11,810) 47,573 (133,485) (44,883) (2,274)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 30 June
RAA=1H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

—TTNF  ZT-FF —T—F T IZEBE-Z=§
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET FEL FEL THER

Total assets BEBE 597,480 667,725 581,666 543,202 587,273
Total liabilities BfEEE (62,733) (79,980) (122,309) (128,669) (167,317)
534,747 587,745 459,357 414,533 419,956
Equity attributable to KARRERAA
equity holders of JEfL R
the Company 534,747 587,745 459,357 414,533 419,956
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Particulars of Major Properties

ETEYRFR

Particulars of investment properties held by the Group at

30 June 2013 are as follows:

Name/location
B, E
Hong Kong

Flat A on 1st Floor,

Flat B on 1st Floor, 2nd Floor,
3rd Floor, the roof and carpark

1,2, 3,4,5and 7 Severn Villa,

3 Severn Road, The Peak,
Hong Kong

The People’s Republic of China

(excluding Hong Kong)

Part of Level 1 &

whole floor of Level 2,
No. 42, Zhan Qian Road,
Zi Pian B Qu,
Guangdong Province

Particulars of properties held for development (as investment
properties) by the Group at 30 June 2013 are as follows:

AEER -_T-=FA=1THEHEFZKRE

WEFHBEIILT

Lease expiry

HYERES

B
BE 2070
L\ TEHEEhIE 3 5% T TF
MEENRIZ1EAE -
142218 - 3EB=E -
FearkEEMT 23
45K 7%
REARAME

(FEEEHE)
ERE 2042
BiRB= —Epy—4F
VAATEE 42 57

—BEO R _EEE

Lease Gross
Name/location expiry Type  site area
LR Mt
28/ ERER i) H&
Panama B2E
Lots 1807, 4920, 4921, 4923, Freehold R/C 53.3 million
4924, 4935, 4936, 4942, KAFHE Sq. ft
4943, 4944, 4945, 6921, 53,300,000
20435, 33248, 35039, FAR
41583, 41619 together with
all beach front property
known as Playa Grande in
Boca Chica, District of
San Lorenzo, Province
of Chiriqui, Panama
Type of properties: R - residential MR -
C - commercial
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Effective

Type % held
BEREER

=i Bkt
R 100

C 100

AEER -_Z-=ZFXA=ZTHFHEZR
(VERBREME) 2WFEFBHIIWT

Effective ~ Stage of Anticipated
% held completion completion

BRER

ok RIRSR RERIT
100 Under N/A
development el
BRT
R- £%
C- A
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